
 
 
 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Carlsbad City Council Regular Meeting at the 
Municipal Building, 101 North Halagueno Street  

Carlsbad, New Mexico 
 

February 23, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. 
 

      
Invocation – Pledge of Allegiance   
 
1. Approval of Agenda  
 
2.  Budget Review as of December 31, 2015 
 
3. Consider approval of Resolution 2016-11, 3rd Quarter Budget Adjustments 
 
4. Routine and Regular Business 
 
 
 
 

 
 
A.  Minutes of the Special City Council Meeting held on February 4, 2016 
B.  Minutes of Regular City Council meeting held February 9, 2016 
C. City Personnel Report 
D.  Purchasing: 
 1) Consider approval to Award RFP 2015-47, to EMSRx for Medical Director Services for the 

City of Carlsbad Fire and Police Department 
 2) Consider approval to Reject RFP 2015-48, for the Comprehensive Healthcare Study and 

Assessment  
 3) Consider approval to Award a CES contract to AK Sales and Consulting, Inc. for the 

Carlsbad Youth Sports Complex Expansion for nylon netting and aluminum bleachers for each 
new field  

E. Contracts and Agreements: 
 1) Consider approval of Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement between the City of 
 Carlsbad and Linda Kay Atwood for qualifying Public Infrastructure at Atwood Subdivision 
F. Monthly Reports:      

 1)  Municipal Court Monthly Report, January, 2016 
 2)  Planning, Engineering, Regulations Department Monthly Report, January, 2016 
 3)  Sports and Recreation Department Monthly Report, January, 2016 

G. Board Appointments: 
 1) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board: Jim Grantner and Christy Thomas, Remainder of 

4-Year Term 
 2) North Mesa Senior Recreation Center Advisory Board: Ysidro Molinar, Remainder of 4-

Year Term 
 
 
 

 
All matters under this heading are considered routine by the City Council and will be acted upon in one motion.  There 
will be no separate discussion of these items.  If discussion is desired on a particular item, upon request, that item may 
be removed from the Routine and Regular Business and be considered separately. 
 



Carlsbad City Council 2/23/2016 
101 N. Halagueno 6:00 p.m. 
 

 2 

5.  Consider approval of Resolution No. 2016-12, a Resolution of the Carlsbad City Council, 
Carlsbad, New Mexico, Authorizing the Submission of a New Mexico Community Development 
Block Grant Program Application to the Department of Finance and Administration/Local 
Government; and Authorizing Mayor Dale Janway to Act as the City of Carlsbad’s Chief Executive 
Officer and Authorized Representative in All Matters Pertaining to the City of Carlsbad’s 
Participation in the Community Development Block Grant Program 
 
6. Consider approval of Resolution No. 2016-13, a Resolution declaring certain City Property 
Unusable or Obsolete 
 
7. Consider approval of Ordinance No. 2016-10, an Ordinance Approving the Sale of Real 
Property by Eddy-Lea Energy Alliance, LLC, a New Mexico Limited Liability Company formed 
Pursuant to the New Mexico Joint Powers Act by Eddy County, Lea County, the City of Carlsbad 
and the City of Hobbs (“ELEA”); Authorizing ELEA to Execute and Deliver a Land Purchase Option 
Agreement with Holtec International, a Delaware Corporation; and Authorizing and Directing ELEA 
to Submit the Agreement to the State Board of Finance for Approval Pursuant to Section 13-6-2.1 
NMSA 1978 
 A. Public Hearing 
 B. Consider Ordinance No. 2016-10 
 
 
8. Council Committee Reports 
  
9. Adjourn   
 
 
 
 
   

FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
 

Agendas and City Council minutes are available on the City web site: cityofcarlsbadnm.com  
 or may be viewed in the Office of the City Clerk or at the Carlsbad Public Library during normal 

and regular business hours. 
          

 
CARLSBAD CITY COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULE 
• Regular meeting - Tuesday, March 8, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. 

• Regular meeting - Tuesday, March 22, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

If you require hearing interpreter, language interpreters or auxiliary aids in order to attend and 
participate in the above meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s office at (575) 887-
1191 at least 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting time. 
 
 



Budget Review
12/31/2015

As of
12/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD TARGET = 50%

Revenues
Gross Receipts Tax 20,794,394$  35,601,035$    58%
Property Tax 1,038,022      2,359,920        44%
Franchise Tax 379,851         777,100           49%
Other 1,437,559      3,040,849        47%
TOTAL 23,649,826$  41,778,904$    57%

Tranfers
IN 0 7,276,585$      0%
OUT 978,636 8,652,641$      11%

Total Expenditures
12/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 12/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 12/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 12/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD

General Fund Expenditures Notes 
Executive 561,829$       1,273,260$      44% 449,813$     1,311,138$      34% -$             12,000$           0% 1,011,642$    2,596,398$      39%
Personnel 149,409         323,633           46% 16,916         26,167             65% -                                           -            - 166,326         349,800           48% Salary Survey $10K
Judicial 229,731         457,534           50% 69,062         147,890           47% -                   6,500               0% 298,793         611,924           49%
Riverwalk Recreation 219,015         466,989           47% 46,117         144,719           32% 42,728         56,000             76% 307,859         667,708           46%
Information Technology 283,220         548,897           52% 79,941         248,238           32% 105,056       335,377           31% 468,217         1,132,512        41% Health Insurance Rebate $22K
Finance 740,605         1,614,017        46% 155,439       654,181           24% 17,504                     100,000 18% 913,548         2,368,198        39%
Cbad Comm Volunteer Netwrk 28,619           67,324             43% 2,876           23,200             12% -                   -                                  - 31,495           90,524             35%
Public Safety 5,473,807      11,609,999      47% 570,588       1,724,813        33% 1,269,740    2,007,708        63% 7,314,135      15,342,520      48%
Fire 3,939,724      7,739,499        51% 329,587       804,822           41% 321,432       2,426,842        13% 4,590,743      10,971,163      42% Health Insurance Rebate $269K
Street 727,334         1,535,604        47% 362,331       894,054           41% 137,523       382,400           36% 1,227,188      2,812,058        44%
Garage 664,004         1,413,216        47% 48,549         140,899           34% 555              67,290             1% 713,108         1,621,405        44%
Electrical 440,426         949,458           46% 27,205         64,777             42% -                   10,000             0% 467,631         1,024,235        46%
Construction 671,229         1,385,537        48% 21,979         71,895             31% -                   39,000             0% 693,208         1,496,432        46%
Community Service 109,085         376,416           29% 7,944           58,235             14% -                                 10,000 0% 117,029         444,651           26%
Golf 235,308         563,608           42% 186,062       451,862           41% 5,102           192,254           3% 426,472         1,207,724        35%
Parks 465,944         954,177           49% 369,686       707,033           52% 374,616                   823,804 45% 1,210,247      2,485,014        49% Tree Trimming $30K 
Airport 145,850         318,425           46% 41,579         152,221           27% 293,762       416,675           71% 481,191         887,321           54% Capital
Facility Maintenance 509,121         1,034,907        49% 41,477         181,100           23% 35,449         86,000             41% 586,047         1,302,007        45%
Library 390,946         767,342           51% 92,303         271,048           34% 1,956           44,690             4% 485,204         1,083,080        45% Health Insurance Rebate $36K
CRC Beautification 26,714           75,643             35% 5,474           21,788             25% -                   -                                  - 32,188           97,431             33%
Museum 133,877         272,019           49% 118,072       242,400           49% 28,201         47,000             60% 280,150         561,419           50%
Planning, Engineering & 
Regulations 795,483         1,940,297        41% 105,951       616,687           17% 2,080           51,732             4% 903,514         2,608,716        35%
Culture & Arts 115,714         231,234           50% 30,299         72,500             42% -                                           -            - 146,013         303,734           48%
San Jose SC 81,101           156,646           52% 17,807         81,580             22% -                   -                                  - 98,907           238,226           42% Health Insurance Rebate $6K

North Mesa SC 85,293           163,389           52% 26,752         62,363             43% 6,345                         19,700 32% 118,390         245,452           48%

Health Insurance Rebate $3K, 
Worked P/T employees 212.5 
hours over budget

TOTAL 17,223,386$  36,239,070$    48% 3,223,813$  9,175,610$      35% 2,642,049$  7,134,972$      37% 23,089,248$  52,549,652$    44%

page 1 of 2

Salaries Operating Capital



Budget Review
12/31/2015

other funds

As of
12/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD TARGET = 50%

Revenues

Transit 278,077$       623,689$         45%

Civic Center 9,987             25,000             40%

Lodgers Tax Oper Revenue 1,059,380      1,863,730        57%

Lodgers Tax Grants -                     217,800           0%

   Total Lodgers Tax Revenues 1,059,380      2,081,530        51%

Solid Waste Operating Revenue 3,037,788      5,812,733        52%

Solid Waste Loan Proceeds -                     1,165,267        0%

    Total Solid Waste Revenue 3,037,788      6,978,000        44%

Cemetery Operating Revenue 77,739           176,000           44%

Cemetery Grants 75,000           100,000           75%

    Total Cemetery Revenue 152,739         276,000           55%

Sports Complex Fund 959,158         1,635,147        59%

Water & Sewer Oper Revenue 6,362,716      15,296,523      42%

Water & Sewer Loan/Grant 1,363,635      2,211,191        62%  
   Total Joint W & S Revenues 7,726,351      17,507,714      44%

Total
12/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 12/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 12/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 12/31/2015 Current Budget Expenditures

Expenditures Notes 

Transit 464,033$       952,553$         49% 67,410$     269,213$         25% 56,998$       118,901$         48% 588,440$       1,340,667$      44%

Civic Center -                     -                       -         73,413       156,500           47% -                   443,707           0% 73,413$         600,207$         12%

Lodgers Tax -                     -                       -         604,845     1,618,567        37% 175,386       1,315,524        13% 780,231$       2,934,091$      27%

Solid Waste 929,250         1,938,936        48% 342,403     1,499,999        23% 576,985       1,918,144        30% 1,848,637$    5,357,079$      35%

Sandpoint Landfill -                     -                       -         151,840     635,000           24% -                   -                       -         151,840$       635,000$         24%

   Total Solid Waste 929,250         1,938,936        48% 494,243     2,134,999        23% 576,985       1,918,144        30% 2,000,477$    5,992,079$      33%

Cemetery 90,099           173,965           52% 274,117     587,261           47% 46,469         543,637           9% 410,684$       1,304,863$      31% Health Insurance Rebate $11K

Sports Complex Fund 285,359         620,375           46% 194,958     649,470           30% 301,624       626,397           48% 781,940$       1,896,242$      41%

Water 1,216,594      2,561,160        48% 669,873     2,073,850        32% 145,789       3,834,349        4% 2,032,256$    8,469,359$      24%

Sewer 364,415         748,761           49% 197,557     670,325           29% 236,379       1,104,357        21% 798,351$       2,523,443$      32%

Double Eagle 616,331         1,184,364        52% 162,160     922,331           18% 1,070,899    11,690,268      9% 1,849,390$    13,796,963$    13% Health Insurance Rebate $36K

Lab Environmental Services 170,016         321,569           53% 15,634       56,079             28% -                   -                       -         185,650$       377,648$         49% Health Insurance Rebate $16K

Collection System 305,127         778,865           39% 73,366       274,531           27% 138,947       3,300,664        4% 517,441$       4,354,060$      12%

   Total Joint W & S Expenditures 2,672,484      5,594,719        48% 1,118,590  3,997,116        28% 1,592,014    19,929,638      8% 5,383,088$    29,521,473$    18%

page 2 of 2

Salaries Operating Capital



Budget Review
11/30/2015

As of
11/30/2015 Current Budget % YTD TARGET = 42%

Revenues
Gross Receipts Tax 17,691,850$  35,601,035$    50%
Property Tax 79,306           2,359,920        3%
Franchise Tax 329,114         777,100           42%
Other 1,272,242      3,040,849        42%
TOTAL 19,372,512$  41,778,904$    46%

Tranfers
IN 0 7,276,585$      0%
OUT 978,636 8,617,641$      11%

Total Expenditures
11/30/2015 Current Budget % YTD 11/30/2015 Current Budget % YTD 11/30/2015 Current Budget % YTD 11/30/2015 Current Budget % YTD

General Fund Expenditures Notes 
Executive 477,288$       1,273,260$      37% 424,419$     1,311,138$      32% -$             12,000$           0% 901,707$       2,596,398$      35%
Personnel 128,421         323,633           40% 16,292         26,167             62% -                                           -            - 144,713         349,800           41% Salary Survey $10K

Judicial 197,215         457,534           43% 66,763         147,890           45% -                   6,500               0% 263,978         611,924           43%
Heath Insurance Rebate $13K, 
Software Maint Agreement $8K

Riverwalk Recreation 185,765         466,989           40% 41,876         144,719           29% 42,728         56,000             76% 270,368         667,708           40%
Information Technology 240,676         548,897           44% 72,965         248,238           29% 99,770         335,377           30% 413,411         1,132,512        37% Health Insurance Rebate $22K
Finance 622,167         1,614,017        39% 136,570       654,181           21% 10,299                     100,000 10% 769,037         2,368,198        32%
Cbad Comm Volunteer Netwrk 23,353           67,324             35% 2,637           23,200             11% -                   -                       0% 25,991           90,524             29%
Public Safety 4,641,303      11,609,999      40% 493,387       1,700,263        29% 1,245,430    2,032,258        61% 6,380,120      15,342,520      42%
Fire 3,393,135      7,739,499        44% 298,388       804,822           37% 321,432       2,426,842        13% 4,012,956      10,971,163      37% Health Insurance Rebate $269K
Street 620,039         1,535,604        40% 312,617       894,054           35% -                   382,400           0% 932,656         2,812,058        33%
Garage 571,445         1,413,216        40% 40,853         140,899           29% 555              67,290             1% 612,853         1,621,405        38%
Electrical 374,140         949,458           39% 24,464         64,777             38% -                   10,000             0% 398,604         1,024,235        39%
Construction 575,859         1,385,537        42% 18,301         71,895             25% -                   39,000             0% 594,160         1,496,432        40%
Community Service 89,344           376,416           24% 6,997           58,235             12% -                                 10,000 0% 96,341           444,651           22%
Golf 205,323         563,608           36% 165,511       451,862           37% 5,102           192,254           3% 375,936         1,207,724        31%
Parks 400,128         954,177           42% 329,333       707,033           47% 317,946                   823,804 39% 1,047,407      2,485,014        42% Tree Trimming $30K 
Airport 123,675         318,425           39% 36,575         152,221           24% 293,762       416,675           71% 454,012         887,321           51% Capital
Facility Maintenance 432,061         1,034,907        42% 32,449         181,100           18% 35,449         86,000             41% 499,959         1,302,007        38%
Library 335,981         767,342           44% 87,602         271,048           32% 1,956           44,690             4% 425,538         1,083,080        39% Health Insurance Rebate $36K
CRC Beautification 22,591           75,643             30% 5,255           21,788             24% -                   -                                  - 27,846           97,431             29%
Museum 113,347         272,019           42% 109,672       242,400           45% 13,350         47,000             28% 236,368         561,419           42% Art appraisal $17K
Planning, Engineering & 
Regulations 687,700         1,940,297        35% 83,631         616,687           14% 2,080           51,732             4% 773,411         2,608,716        30%
Culture & Arts 98,548           231,234           43% 23,881         72,500             33% -                                           - 0% 122,430         303,734           40% Health Insurance Rebate $7K
San Jose SC 69,343           156,646           44% 15,061         81,580             18% -                   -                       0% 84,404           238,226           35% Health Insurance Rebate $6K

North Mesa SC 72,285           163,389           44% 25,667         62,363             41% 6,345                         19,700 32% 104,298         245,452           42%

Health Insurance Rebate $3K, 
Worked P/T employees 176.5 
hours over budget

TOTAL 14,701,132$  36,239,070$    41% 2,871,168$  9,151,060$      31% 2,396,204$  7,159,522$      33% 19,968,504$  52,549,652$    38%

page 1 of 2

Salaries Operating Capital



Budget Review
11/30/2015

other funds

As of
11/30/2015 Current Budget % YTD TARGET = 42%

Revenues

Transit 207,094$       623,689$         33%

Civic Center 9,987             25,000             40%

Lodgers Tax Oper Revenue 907,023         1,863,730        49%

Lodgers Tax Grants -                     217,800           0%

   Total Lodgers Tax Revenues 907,023         2,081,530        44%

Solid Waste Operating Revenue 2,533,411      5,812,733        44%

Solid Waste Loan Proceeds -                     1,165,267        0%

    Total Solid Waste Revenue 2,533,411      6,978,000        36%

Cemetery Operating Revenue 67,179           176,000           38%

Cemetery Grants 75,000           100,000           75%

    Total Cemetery Revenue 142,179         276,000           52%

Sports Complex Fund 801,011         1,635,147        49%

Water & Sewer Oper Revenue 5,495,503      15,296,523      36%

Water & Sewer Loan/Grant 1,363,635      2,211,191        62%  
   Total Joint W & S Revenues 6,859,138      17,507,714      39%

Total
11/30/2015 Current Budget % YTD 11/30/2015 Current Budget % YTD 11/30/2015 Current Budget % YTD 11/30/2015 Current Budget Expenditures

Expenditures Notes 

Transit 392,750$       952,553$         41% 58,238$     269,213$         22% 56,998$       118,901$         48% 507,986$       1,340,667$      38%

Civic Center -                     -                       -         64,528       156,500           41% -                   443,707           0% 64,528$         600,207$         11%

Lodgers Tax -                     -                       -         511,870     1,618,567        32% 175,386       1,315,524        13% 687,256$       2,934,091$      23%

Solid Waste 797,362         1,938,936        41% 294,373     1,504,999        20% 576,985       1,913,144        30% 1,668,720$    5,357,079$      31%

Sandpoint Landfill -                     -                       -         151,840     635,000           24% -                   -                       -         151,840$       635,000$         24%

   Total Solid Waste 797,362         1,938,936        41% 446,213     2,139,999        21% 576,985       1,913,144        30% 1,820,560$    5,992,079$      30%

Cemetery 77,615           173,965           45% 235,171     587,261           40% 24,117         543,637           4% 336,902$       1,304,863$      26% Health Insurance Rebate $11K

Sports Complex Fund 243,756         620,375           39% 159,615     649,470           25% 263,275       626,397           42% 666,646$       1,896,242$      35%

Water 1,037,066      2,561,160        40% 600,668     2,073,850        29% 135,929       3,834,349        4% 1,773,664$    8,469,359$      21%

Sewer 309,251         748,761           41% 190,462     670,325           28% 207,374       1,104,357        19% 707,088$       2,523,443$      28%

Double Eagle 525,955         1,184,364        44% 147,602     922,331           16% 1,033,714    11,690,268      9% 1,707,271$    13,796,963$    12% Health Insurance Rebate 
$36K, Overtime

Lab Environmental Services 145,269         321,569           45% 13,276       56,079             24% -                   -                       0% 158,545$       377,648$         42% Health Insurance Rebate $16K

Collection System 264,696         778,865           34% 66,088       274,531           24% 138,947       3,300,664        4% 469,731$       4,354,060$      11%

   Total Joint W & S Expenditures 2,282,238      5,594,719        41% 1,018,096  3,997,116        25% 1,515,965    19,929,638      8% 4,816,299$    29,521,473$    16%

page 2 of 2

Salaries Operating Capital



Budget Review
10/31/2015

As of
10/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD TARGET = 33%

Revenues
Gross Receipts Tax 14,594,861$  35,601,035$    41%
Property Tax 74,390           2,359,920        3%
Franchise Tax 265,688         777,100           34%
Other 1,019,447      3,040,849        34%
TOTAL 15,954,386$  41,778,904$    38%

Tranfers
IN 0 7,276,585$      0%
OUT 978,636 8,459,641$      12%

Total Expenditures
10/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 10/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 10/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 10/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD

General Fund Expenditures Notes 
Executive 393,087$       1,273,260$      31% 383,323$     1,311,138$      29% -$             12,000$           0% 776,410$       2,596,398$      30%
Personnel 105,114         323,633           32% 15,160         26,167             58% -                                           -            - 120,274         349,800           34% Salary Survey $10K

Judicial 163,745         457,534           36% 52,759         147,890           36% -                   6,500               0% 216,504         611,924           35%

Heath Insurance Rebate $13K, 
Software Maint Agreement $8K, 
Travel $5K

Riverwalk Recreation 154,577         466,989           33% 34,797         144,719           24% 42,728         56,000             76% 232,102         667,708           35% Capital
Information Technology 199,216         548,897           36% 51,432         248,238           21% 44,943         335,377           13% 295,591         1,132,512        26% Health Insurance Rebate $22K
Finance 506,848         1,614,017        31% 117,911       654,181           18% 10,299                     100,000 10% 635,058         2,368,198        27%
Cbad Comm Volunteer Netwrk 18,298           67,324             27% 1,081           23,200             5% -                   -                       0% 19,380           90,524             21%
Public Safety 3,832,111      11,609,999      33% 340,751       1,677,859        20% 974,829       2,054,662        47% 5,147,691      15,342,520      34% Capital

Fire 2,837,710      7,739,499        37% 228,878       797,112           29% 263,281       2,434,552        11% 3,329,868      10,971,163      30%
Health Insurance Rebate $269K, 
Overtime

Street 516,015         1,535,604        34% 254,374       890,069           29% -                   382,400           0% 770,389         2,808,073        27%
Garage 486,805         1,413,216        34% 29,114         140,899           21% 555              67,290             1% 516,474         1,621,405        32%
Electrical 308,059         949,458           32% 18,689         64,777             29% -                   10,000             0% 326,749         1,024,235        32%
Construction 483,148         1,385,537        35% 14,340         71,895             20% -                   39,000             0% 497,488         1,496,432        33% Health Insurance Rebate $75K
Community Service 69,910           376,416           19% 5,652           58,235             10% -                                 10,000 0% 75,562           444,651           17%
Golf 174,103         563,608           31% 137,023       451,862           30% 5,102           192,254           3% 316,228         1,207,724        26%

Parks 334,318         954,177           35% 250,381       707,033           35% 195,109                   823,804 24% 779,808         2,485,014        31%
Health Insurance Rebate $42K, 
Tree Trimming 14K 

Airport 102,617         318,425           32% 31,598         152,221           21% 250,852       416,675           60% 385,068         887,321           43% Capital
Facility Maintenance 361,183         1,034,907        35% 24,633         181,100           14% 35,449         86,000             41% 421,265         1,302,007        32% Health Insurance Rebate $44K
Library 280,835         767,342           37% 71,311         273,782           26% 1,956           41,956             5% 354,101         1,083,080        33% Health Insurance Rebate $36K
CRC Beautification 18,604           75,643             25% 4,364           21,788             20% -                   -                                  - 22,968           97,431             24%

Museum 92,279           272,019           34% 83,598         187,050           45% 3,756           47,000             8% 179,634         506,069           35%
Art appraisal $17K, Exhibit Exp 
$7K

Planning, Engineering & 
Regulations 575,958         1,940,297        30% 60,909         616,687           10% 2,080           51,732             4% 638,947         2,608,716        24%
Culture & Arts 81,468           231,234           35% 8,137           72,500             11% -                                           - 0% 89,606           303,734           30% Health Insurance Rebate $7K

San Jose SC 57,894           156,646           37% 10,887         81,580             13% -                   -                       0% 68,780           238,226           29%

Health Insurance Rebate $6K, 
Worked P/T employee 56 hours 
over budget

North Mesa SC 59,556           163,389           36% 16,008         62,363             26% -                                 11,700 0% 75,565           237,452           32%

Health Insurance Rebate $3K, 
Worked P/T employees 140.5 
hours over budget

TOTAL 12,213,458$  36,239,070$    34% 2,247,111$  9,064,345$      25% 1,830,939$  7,178,902$      26% 16,291,508$  52,482,317$    31%

page 1 of 2

Salaries Operating Capital



Budget Review
10/31/2015

other funds

As of
10/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD TARGET = 33%

Revenues

Transit 130,609$       623,689$         21%

Civic Center 6,800             25,000             27%

Lodgers Tax Oper Revenue 743,577         1,863,730        40%

Lodgers Tax Grants -                     217,800           0%

   Total Lodgers Tax Revenues 743,577         2,081,530        36%

Solid Waste Operating Revenue 2,041,881      5,812,733        35%

Solid Waste Loan Proceeds -                     1,165,267        0%

    Total Solid Waste Revenue 2,041,881      6,978,000        29%

Cemetery Operating Revenue 49,889           176,000           28%

Cemetery Grants 75,000           100,000           75%

    Total Cemetery Revenue 124,889         276,000           45%

Sports Complex Fund 657,359         1,635,147        40%

Water & Sewer Oper Revenue 4,592,901      15,296,523      30%

Water & Sewer Loan/Grant 1,194,594      2,211,191        54%  
   Total Joint W & S Revenues 5,787,495      17,507,714      33%

Total
10/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 10/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 10/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 10/31/2015 Current Budget Expenditures

Expenditures Notes 

Transit 324,670$       952,553$         34% 46,256$     269,213$         17% 56,998$       118,901$         48% 427,925$       1,340,667$      32% Health Insurance Rebate $28K

Civic Center -                     -                       -         47,047       156,500           30% -                   443,707           0% 47,047$         600,207$         8%

Lodgers Tax -                     -                       -         359,162     1,618,567        22% 104,722       1,315,524        8% 463,884$       2,934,091$      16%

Solid Waste 667,804         1,938,936        34% 233,220     1,504,999        15% 465,009       1,913,144        24% 1,366,032$    5,357,079$      25% Health Insurance Rebate $91K

Sandpoint Landfill -                     -                       -         151,840     635,000           24% -                   -                       -         151,840$       635,000$         24%

   Total Solid Waste 667,804         1,938,936        34% 385,060     2,139,999        18% 465,009       1,913,144        24% 1,517,872$    5,992,079$      25%

Cemetery 65,404           173,965           38% 189,284     587,261           32% 24,117         543,637           4% 278,805$       1,304,863$      21% Health Insurance Rebate $11K

Sports Complex Fund 204,111         620,375           33% 117,481     649,470           18% 98,153         626,397           16% 419,744$       1,896,242$      22%

Water 864,096         2,561,160        34% 461,951     1,983,850        23% 115,151       3,834,349        3% 1,441,198$    8,379,359$      17% Health Insurance Rebate $94K

Sewer 253,903         748,761           34% 149,652     640,325           23% 17,547         1,104,357        2% 421,101$       2,493,443$      17% Health Insurance Rebate $25K

Double Eagle 438,295         1,184,364        37% 114,463     759,861           15% 863,921       11,690,268      7% 1,416,680$    13,634,493$    10% Health Insurance Rebate 
$36K, Overtime

Lab Environmental Services 121,257         321,569           38% 12,031       56,079             21% -                   -                       0% 133,289$       377,648$         35% Health Insurance Rebate $16K

Collection System 224,138         778,865           29% 41,820       274,531           15% 124,499       3,300,664        4% 390,456$       4,354,060$      9%

   Total Joint W & S Expenditures 1,901,689      5,594,719        34% 779,918     3,714,646        21% 1,121,118    19,929,638      6% 3,802,724$    29,239,003$    13%

page 2 of 2

Salaries Operating Capital



Budget Review
9/30/2015

As of
9/30/2015 Current Budget % YTD TARGET = 25%

Revenues
Gross Receipts Tax 10,721,766$  35,601,035$    30%
Property Tax 68,116           2,359,920        3%
Franchise Tax 178,447         777,100           23%
Other 847,802         3,040,849        28%
TOTAL 11,816,130$  41,778,904$    28%

Tranfers
IN 0 5,877,428$      0%
OUT 808,536 8,459,641$      10%

Total Expenditures
9/30/2015 Current Budget % YTD 9/30/2015 Current Budget % YTD 9/30/2015 Current Budget % YTD 9/30/2015 Current Budget % YTD

General Fund Expenditures Notes 
Executive 241,588$       1,235,704$      20% 256,335$     1,311,138$      20% -$             12,000$           0% 497,923$       2,558,842$      19%
Personnel 58,215           309,405           19% 14,804         26,167             57% -                                           -            - 73,019           335,572           22% Salary Survey $10K

Judicial 101,440         443,306           23% 46,684         147,890           32% -                   6,500               0% 148,123         597,696           25%
Software Maint Agreement $8K, 
Travel $5K

Riverwalk Recreation 98,441           458,845           21% 24,855         144,719           17% 42,728         56,000             76% 166,023         659,564           25%
Information Technology 118,405         525,064           23% 30,926         248,238           12% 44,331         335,377           13% 193,662         1,108,679        17%
Finance 306,732         1,466,107        21% 77,826         654,181           12% 3,247                       100,000 3% 387,805         2,220,288        17%
Cbad Comm Volunteer Netwrk 10,940           67,324             16% 966              23,200             4% -                   -                       0% 11,907           90,524             13%
Public Safety 2,315,912      11,179,145      21% 231,567       1,677,859        14% 117,575       2,054,662        6% 2,665,054      14,911,666      18%
Fire 1,670,374      7,451,157        22% 151,347       797,112           19% 230,051       2,434,552        9% 2,051,772      10,682,821      19%
Street 306,302         1,473,256        21% 163,142       890,069           18% -                   382,400           0% 469,444         2,745,725        17%
Garage 287,779         1,331,244        22% 18,129         140,899           13% -                   67,290             0% 305,909         1,539,433        20%
Electrical 181,388         917,981           20% 9,330           64,777             14% -                   10,000             0% 190,718         992,758           19%
Construction 272,846         1,304,350        21% 10,457         71,895             15% -                   39,000             0% 283,303         1,415,245        20%
Community Service 37,287           366,811           10% 3,184           58,235             5% -                                 10,000 0% 40,472           435,046           9%
Golf 100,633         536,407           19% 103,703       444,297           23% 5,102           192,254           3% 209,438         1,172,958        18%
Parks 197,854         908,573           22% 172,813       701,382           25% 116,861                   798,804 15% 487,528         2,408,759        20%
Airport 64,513           311,384           21% 20,534         152,221           13% 54,092         416,675           13% 139,138         880,280           16%
Facility Maintenance 210,570         987,584           21% 11,103         181,100           6% 10,048         86,000             12% 231,721         1,254,684        18%
Library 163,214         728,198           22% 42,508         273,782           16% 1,956           41,956             5% 207,677         1,043,936        20%
CRC Beautification 12,672           75,643             17% 1,341           21,788             6% -                   -                                  - 14,013           97,431             14%

Museum 59,066           268,499           22% 67,031         187,050           36% 3,756           47,000             8% 129,854         502,549           26%
Art appraisal $17K, Exhibit Exp 
$7K

Planning, Engineering & 
Regulations 347,143         1,877,970        18% 37,767         616,687           6% 2,080           51,732             4% 386,990         2,546,389        15%
Culture & Arts 48,882           223,090           22% 6,637           72,500             9% -                                           - 0% 55,519           295,590           19%
San Jose SC 34,358           149,605           23% 8,528           81,580             10% -                   -                       0% 42,885           231,185           19%
North Mesa SC 37,509           159,869           23% 12,602         62,363             20% -                                 11,700 0% 50,111           233,932           21%
TOTAL 7,284,063$    34,756,521$    21% 1,524,118$  9,051,129$      17% 631,827$     7,153,902$      9% 9,440,008$    50,961,552$    19%

page 1 of 2

Salaries Operating Capital



Budget Review
9/30/2015
other funds

As of
9/30/2015 Current Budget % YTD TARGET = 25%

Revenues

Transit 99,960$        623,689$        16%

Civic Center 5,738            25,000            23%

Lodgers Tax Oper Revenue 581,369        1,863,730       31%

Solid Waste Operating Revenue 1,522,006      5,812,733       26%

Solid Waste Loan Proceeds -                    1,165,267       0%

    Total Solid Waste Revenue 1,522,006      6,978,000       22%

Cemetery Operating Revenue 39,689          176,000          23%

Cemetery Grants 75,000          100,000          75%

    Total Cemetery Revenue 114,689        276,000          42%

Sports Complex Fund 484,269        1,635,147       30%

Water & Sewer Oper Revenue 3,351,092      15,296,523      22%

Water & Sewer Loan/Grant 1,194,594      2,211,191       54%  
   Total Joint W & S Revenues 4,545,686      17,507,714      26%

Total
9/30/2015 Current Budget % YTD 9/30/2015 Current Budget % YTD 9/30/2015 Current Budget % YTD 9/30/2015 Current Budget Expenditures

Expenditures Notes 

Transit 195,821$       921,825$        21% 29,847$     269,213$        11% 5,463$        118,901$        5% 231,131$       1,309,939$      18%

Civic Center -                    -                      -         26,591       156,500          17% -                  443,707          0% 26,591$        600,207$        4%

Lodgers Tax -                    -                      -         267,059     1,602,219       17% 96,015        1,315,524       7% 363,074$       2,917,743$      12%

Solid Waste 397,081        1,841,283       22% 155,166     1,504,999       10% 233,318       1,913,144       12% 785,565$       5,259,426$      15%

Sandpoint Landfill -                    -                      -         -                635,000          0% -                  -                      -         -$              635,000$        0%

   Total Solid Waste 397,081        1,841,283       22% 155,166     2,139,999       7% 233,318       1,913,144       12% 785,565$       5,894,426$      13%

Cemetery 36,583          162,300          23% 124,521     587,261          21% 4,631          543,637          1% 165,735$       1,293,198$      13%

Sports Complex Fund 120,850        595,683          20% 97,001       649,470          15% 88,893        626,397          14% 306,743$       1,871,550$      16%

Water 515,860        2,459,543       21% 331,378     1,983,850       17% 51,032        3,758,349       1% 898,270$       8,201,742$      11%

Sewer 151,505        721,413          21% 69,249       640,325          11% 13,809        1,104,357       1% 234,563$       2,466,095$      10%

Double Eagle 276,681        1,145,532       24% 82,411       759,861          11% 504,696       11,690,268      4% 863,788$       13,595,661$    6%

Lab Environmental Services 70,545          304,034          23% 5,211        56,079            9% -                  -                      0% 75,756$        360,113$        21%

Collection System 138,886        750,840          18% 31,547       274,531          11% 19,374        3,300,664       1% 189,807$       4,326,035$      4%

   Total Joint W & S Expenditures 1,153,477      5,381,362       21% 519,795     3,714,646       14% 588,911       19,853,638      3% 2,262,184$    28,949,646$    8%

page 2 of 2

Salaries Operating Capital



Budget Review
8/31/2015

As of
8/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD TARGET = 17%

Revenues
Gross Receipts Tax 6,362,875$    35,601,035$    18%
Property Tax 59,488           2,359,920        3%
Franchise Tax 114,117         777,100           15%
Other 585,069         3,040,849        19%
TOTAL 7,121,549$    41,778,904$    17%

Tranfers
IN 0 5,877,428$      0%
OUT 808,536 8,459,641$      10%

Total Expenditures
8/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 8/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 8/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 8/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD

General Fund Expenditures Notes 
Executive 160,599$       1,235,704$      13% 154,880$     1,311,138$      12% -$             12,000$           0% 315,479$       2,558,842$      12%
Personnel 40,373           309,405           13% 13,750         26,167             53% -                                           -            - 54,122           335,572           16% Salary Survey $10K
Judicial 67,017           443,306           15% 27,939         147,890           19% -                   6,500               0% 94,956           597,696           16% Software Maint Agreement $8K
Riverwalk Recreation 67,557           458,845           15% 17,734         144,719           12% -                   56,000             0% 85,292           659,564           13%
Information Technology 78,526           525,064           15% 16,267         233,238           7% 44,331         335,377           13% 139,124         1,093,679        13%
Finance 200,647         1,466,107        14% 53,864         654,181           8% -                               100,000 0% 254,511         2,220,288        11%
Cbad Comm Volunteer Netwrk 7,063             67,324             10% 853              23,200             4% -                   -                       0% 7,915             90,524             9%
Public Safety 1,537,580      11,179,145      14% 128,496       1,677,859        8% 60,921         2,034,662        3% 1,726,997      14,891,666      12%
Fire 1,120,701      7,431,496        15% 80,759         793,538           10% 169,910       2,388,126        7% 1,371,371      10,613,160      13%
Street 205,725         1,473,256        14% 75,096         890,069           8% -                   382,400           0% 280,821         2,745,725        10%
Garage 192,812         1,331,244        14% 7,977           140,899           6% -                   67,290             0% 200,789         1,539,433        13%
Electrical 119,497         917,981           13% 6,512           64,777             10% -                   10,000             0% 126,009         992,758           13%
Construction 181,834         1,304,350        14% 7,007           71,895             10% -                   39,000             0% 188,841         1,415,245        13%
Community Service 23,634           366,811           6% 1,950           58,235             3% -                                 10,000 0% 25,583           435,046           6%
Golf 72,781           536,407           14% 79,355         444,297           18% 857              192,254           0.45% 152,994         1,172,958        13% Tree pruning $20K
Parks 132,662         908,573           15% 112,736       701,382           16% 67,921                     798,804 9% 313,319         2,408,759        13%
Airport 42,924           311,384           14% 9,194           152,221           6% 54,092         416,675           13% 106,209         880,280           12%
Facility Maintenance 137,987         987,584           14% 6,221           181,100           3% -                   86,000             0% 144,208         1,254,684        11%
Library 108,402         728,198           15% 23,538         273,782           9% -                   41,956             0% 131,940         1,043,936        13%
CRC Beautification 8,294             75,643             11% 789              21,788             4% -                   -                                  - 9,083             97,431             9%

Museum 38,939           268,499           15% 57,717         187,050           31% -                   47,000             0% 96,656           502,549           19%
Art appraisal $17K, Exhibit Exp 
$7K

Planning, Engineering & 
Regulations 231,255         1,877,970        12% 26,804         616,687           4% 2,080           51,732             4% 260,139         2,546,389        10%
Culture & Arts 33,446           223,090           15% 2,446           72,500             3% -                                           - 0% 35,892           295,590           12%
San Jose SC 22,869           149,605           15% 5,645           81,580             7% -                   -                       0% 28,514           231,185           12%
North Mesa SC 24,858           159,869           16% 5,658           62,363             9% -                                 11,700 0% 30,515           233,932           13%
TOTAL 4,857,982$    34,736,860$    14% 923,185$     9,032,555$      10% 400,113$     7,087,476$      6% 6,181,280$    50,856,891$    12%

page 1 of 2

Salaries Operating Capital



Budget Review
8/31/2015
other funds

As of
8/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD TARGET = 17%

Revenues

Transit 66,624$        623,689$        11%

Civic Center 5,100            25,000            20%

Lodgers Tax Oper Revenue 395,118        1,863,730       21%

Solid Waste Operating Revenue 1,009,307      5,812,733       17%

Solid Waste Loan Proceeds -                    1,165,267       0%

    Total Solid Waste Revenue 1,009,307      6,978,000       14%

Cemetery Operating Revenue 25,964          176,000          15%

Cemetery Grants -                    100,000          0%

    Total Cemetery Revenue 25,964          276,000          9%

Sports Complex Fund 296,239        1,635,147       18%

Water & Sewer Oper Revenue 2,236,798      15,296,523      15%

Water & Sewer Loan/Grant 1,194,594      2,211,191       54%  
   Total Joint W & S Revenues 3,431,392      17,507,714      20%

Total
8/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 8/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 8/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 8/31/2015 Current Budget Expenditures

Expenditures Notes 

Transit 128,671$       921,825$        14% 20,312$     269,213$        8% 5,463$        118,901$        5% 154,446$       1,309,939$      12%

Civic Center -                    -                      -         19,131       156,500          12% -                  443,707          0% 19,131$        600,207$        3%

Lodgers Tax -                    -                      -         71,269       1,405,175       5% 44,753        1,315,524       3% 116,022$       2,720,699$      4%

Solid Waste 262,297        1,841,283       14% 99,731       1,504,999       7% 230,740       1,913,144       12% 592,768$       5,259,426$      11%

Sandpoint Landfill -                    -                      -         -                635,000          0% -                  -                      -         -$              635,000$        0%

   Total Solid Waste 262,297        1,841,283       14% 99,731       2,139,999       5% 230,740       1,913,144       12% 592,768$       5,894,426$      10%

Cemetery 24,368          162,300          15% 67,721       552,261          12% 4,631          543,637          1% 96,720$        1,258,198$      8%

Sports Complex Fund 80,105          595,683          13% 69,419       649,470          11% 32,764        626,397          5% 182,288$       1,871,550$      10%

Water 346,477        2,459,543       14% 202,247     1,983,850       10% 38,866        3,667,922       1% 587,591$       8,111,315$      7%

Sewer 101,873        721,413          14% 46,749       640,325          7% 13,809        1,104,357       1% 162,431$       2,466,095$      7%

Double Eagle 183,371        1,145,532       16% 38,670       759,861          5% 431,157       11,690,268      4% 653,197$       13,595,661$    5%

Lab Environmental Services 46,581          304,034          15% 1,288        56,079            2% -                  -                      0% 47,870$        360,113$        13%

Collection System 97,416          750,840          13% 22,100       274,531          8% 9,374          3,300,664       0.28% 128,890$       4,326,035$      3%

   Total Joint W & S Expenditures 775,718        5,381,362       14% 311,054     3,714,646       8% 493,205       19,763,211      2% 1,579,978$    28,859,219$    5%

page 2 of 2

Salaries Operating Capital



Budget Review
7/31/2015

As of
7/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD TARGET = 8%

Revenues
Gross Receipts Tax 2,799,225$    35,601,035$    8%
Property Tax 32,035           2,359,920        1%
Franchise Tax 66,796           777,100           9%
Other 341,271         3,040,849        11%
TOTAL 3,239,327$    41,778,904$    8%

Tranfers
IN 0 5,877,428$      0%
OUT 638,536 8,459,641$      8%

Total Expenditures
7/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 7/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 7/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 7/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD

General Fund Expenditures Notes 
Executive 80,671$         1,247,432$      6% 50,243$       1,311,138$      4% -$             12,000$           0% 130,914$       2,570,570$      5%
Personnel 19,745           309,405           6% 12,863         26,167             49% -                                           -            - 32,608           335,572           10% Salary Survey $10K
Judicial 32,725           443,306           7% 1,106           147,890           1% -                   6,500               0% 33,831           597,696           6%
Riverwalk Recreation 34,161           458,845           7% 1,588           144,719           1% -                   56,000             0% 35,749           659,564           5%
Information Technology 38,742           525,064           7% 3,345           233,238           1% 2,312           335,377           1% 44,399           1,093,679        4%
Finance 97,953           1,466,107        7% 27,301         654,181           4% -                               100,000 0% 125,254         2,220,288        6%
Cbad Comm Volunteer Netwrk 3,514             67,324             5% 112              23,200             0.48% -                   -                       0% 3,625             90,524             4%
Public Safety 776,994         11,179,145      7% 48,489         1,677,859        3% 25,499         2,034,662        1% 850,982         14,891,666      6%
Fire 553,373         7,419,768        7% 36,294         793,538           5% 169,910       2,388,126        7% 759,577         10,601,432      7%
Street 104,116         1,473,256        7% 26,414         890,069           3% -                   382,400           0% 130,530         2,745,725        5%
Garage 94,178           1,331,244        7% 1,600           140,899           1% -                   67,290             0% 95,778           1,539,433        6%
Electrical 58,474           917,981           6% 1,682           64,777             3% -                   10,000             0% 60,156           992,758           6%
Construction 90,584           1,304,350        7% 4,392           71,895             6% -                   39,000             0% 94,976           1,415,245        7%
Community Service 11,409           366,811           3% 1,085           58,235             2% -                                 10,000 0% 12,494           435,046           3%
Golf 39,897           536,407           7% 52,083         444,297           12% -                   192,254           0% 91,980           1,172,958        8% Tree pruning $20K
Parks 66,922           908,573           7% 25,299         701,382           4% 52,371                     798,804 7% 144,592         2,408,759        6%
Airport 22,099           311,384           7% 2,889           152,221           2% 54,092         416,675           13% 79,080           880,280           9% Capital purchase
Facility Maintenance 69,534           987,584           7% 1,789           181,100           1% -                   86,000             0% 71,324           1,254,684        6%
Library 53,902           728,198           7% 7,755           273,782           3% -                   41,956             0% 61,657           1,043,936        6%
CRC Beautification 3,946             75,643             5% 304              21,788             1% -                   -                                  - 4,250             97,431             4%

Museum 19,463           268,499           7% 39,390         187,050           21% -                   47,000             0% 58,853           502,549           12%
Art appraisal $17K, Exhibit Exp 
$7K

Planning, Engineering & 
Regulations 113,261         1,877,970        6% 6,682           616,687           1% -                   51,732             0% 119,942         2,546,389        5%
Culture & Arts 16,924           223,090           8% 1,543           72,500             2% -                                           - 0% 18,467           295,590           6%
San Jose SC 11,371           149,605           8% 960              81,580             1% -                   -                       0% 12,331           231,185           5%
North Mesa SC 12,302           159,869           8% 2,918           62,363             5% -                                 11,700            - 15,221           233,932           7%
TOTAL 2,426,259$    34,736,860$    7% 358,126$     9,032,555$      4% 304,184$     7,087,476$      4% 3,088,570$    50,856,891$    6%

page 1 of 2

Salaries Operating Capital



Budget Review
7/31/2015
other funds

As of
7/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD TARGET = 8%

Revenues

Transit 56,074$        623,689$        9%

Civic Center 3,825            25,000            15%

Lodgers Tax Oper Revenue 183,127        1,863,730       10%

Solid Waste Operating Revenue 492,973        5,812,733       8%

Solid Waste Loan Proceeds -                    1,165,267       0%

    Total Solid Waste Revenue 492,973        6,978,000       7%

Cemetery Operating Revenue 10,043          176,000          6%

Cemetery Grants -                    100,000          0%

    Total Cemetery Revenue 10,043          276,000          4%

Sports Complex Fund 131,837        1,635,147       8%

Water & Sewer Oper Revenue 1,079,327      15,296,523      7%

Water & Sewer Loan/Grant 988,759        2,211,191       45%  
   Total Joint W & S Revenues 2,068,086      17,507,714      12%

Total
7/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 7/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 7/31/2015 Current Budget % YTD 7/31/2015 Current Budget Expenditures

Expenditures Notes 

Transit 62,515$        921,825$        7% 10,527$     269,213$        4% -$            118,901$        0% 73,041$        1,309,939$      6%

Civic Center -                    -                      -         7,990        156,500          5% -                  443,707          0% 7,990$          600,207$        1%

Lodgers Tax -                    -                      -         45,038       1,375,175       3% 35,661        1,345,524       3% 80,699$        2,720,699$      3%

Solid Waste 132,651        1,841,283       7% 52,896       1,504,999       4% 83,426        1,913,144       4% 268,974$       5,259,426$      5%

Sandpoint Landfill -                    -                      -         -                635,000          0% -                  -                      -         -$              635,000$        0%

   Total Solid Waste 132,651        1,841,283       7% 52,896       2,139,999       2% 83,426        1,913,144       4% 268,974$       5,894,426$      5%

Cemetery 12,157          162,300          7% 31,940       552,261          6% 495             543,637          0.09% 44,592$        1,258,198$      4%

Sports Complex Fund 39,810          595,683          7% 39,253       649,470          6% 21,351        626,397          3% 100,414$       1,871,550$      5%

Water 170,822        2,459,543       7% 54,756       1,983,850       3% 23,996        3,667,922       1% 249,574$       8,111,315$      3%

Sewer 50,942          721,413          7% 11,901       640,325          2% 13,809        1,104,357       1% 76,652$        2,466,095$      3%

Double Eagle 84,757          1,145,532       7% 18,152       759,861          2% 224,058       11,690,268      2% 326,966$       13,595,661$    2%

Lab Environmental Services 22,918          304,034          8% 695           56,079            1% -                  -                      0% 23,613$        360,113$        7%

Collection System 53,946          750,840          7% 2,055        274,531          1% 9,374          3,300,664       0.28% 65,374$        4,326,035$      2%

   Total Joint W & S Expenditures 383,384        5,381,362       7% 87,560       3,714,646       2% 271,236       19,763,211      1% 742,180$       28,859,219$    3%

page 2 of 2

Salaries Operating Capital



 RESOLUTION NO. 2016-11 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING CERTAIN BUDGETARY 
 ADJUSTMENTS TO THE 2015-16 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET 
          
  
 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the 2015-16 fiscal year budget to adjust 
revenues, transfers and expenditures as reflected on the attached pages, and 
incorporated herein by reference. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 
CITY OF CARLSBAD that the 2015-16 fiscal year budget be amended as attached. 
 
 
 INTRODUCED, PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 23rd day of February 
2016. 
   
         
 
          
    
 
       ______________________________ 
                    Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
          City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       



CITY OF CARLSBAD
FY 2015-2016 BUDGET 

BEGINNING 1ST QTR JANUARY FEBRUARY INC/DEC REVISED
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS ADJUSTMENTS ADJUSTMENTS ADJ BUDGET

GENERAL FUND     FUND 01

CASH BALANCE 22,780,443              22,780,443                

REVENUE 41,778,904              -                        -                      41,778,904                
NET TRANSFERS (2,582,213)              (148,310)                (1,524,366)                 
     TOTAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS 39,196,691              (148,310)                -                      40,254,538                

PERSONNEL EXPENSE 34,736,860              19,661               4,433                     -                      36,243,503                
OPERATING EXPENSE 9,032,555                15,000               -                        73,435                55,504     9,249,045                  
CAPITAL OUTLAY 7,087,476                70,000               -                        -                      (55,504)    7,134,972                  
     TOTAL EXPENSES 50,856,891              104,661             4,433                     73,435                52,627,520                

     NET REVENUES/EXPENSES (11,660,200)             (104,661)            (152,743)                (73,435)               (12,372,982)               

ENDING CASH BALANCE 11,120,243              (104,661)            (152,743)                (73,435)               10,407,461                

STATUTORY 1/12 RESERVE 4,385,627                  

ADDITIONAL 1/12 RESERVE 4,385,627                  

UNRESTRICTED CASH BALANCE 1,636,208                  



CITY OF CARLSBAD
FY 2015-2016 BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS

3RD QTR
                                                                                                                   FEBRUARY

Current Change New
Budget Budget Budget Item #

01‐0010‐60139‐000000 OUTSIDE AGENCIES 136,035 23,435 159,470 1
FINANCIAL COMMITMENT TO THE CITY OF ROSWELL  FOR THE AMERICAN AIRLINES MINIMUM 
REVENUE GUARANTEE & CONTINUED MARKETING FOR FLIGHTS FROM ROSWELL TO PHOENIX

TOTAL EXPENDITURES DEPT. 10 - EXECUTIVE 23,435

01‐0061‐84055‐000000 SOFTWARE 0 50,000 50,000 2
FLEET MAINTENANCE SOFTWARE FOR PUBLIC WORKS, PFA  & TRANSIT VEHICLES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES DEPT. 61 - GARAGE 50,000

TOTAL EXPENDITURES GENERAL FUND 73,435                       

NET INC/DEC GENERAL FUND (73,435)                      



CITY OF CARLSBAD
FY 2015-2016 BUDGET 

BEGINNING 1ST QTR JANUARY FEBRUARY INC/DEC REVISED
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS ADJUSTMENTS ADJUSTMENTS ADJ BUDGET

LODGERS' TAX        FUND 23

CASH BALANCE 2,655,108                2,655,108                  

REVENUE 1,863,730                -                      2,081,530                  
NET TRANSFERS (1,400,000)              (1,400,000)                 
     TOTAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS 463,730                  -                      681,530                     

PERSONNEL EXPENSE -                         -                     -                             
OPERATING EXPENSE 1,375,175                197,044             -                        17,900                30,000     1,636,467                  
CAPITAL OUTLAY 1,345,524                -                     -                        -                      (30,000)    1,315,524                  
     TOTAL EXPENSES 2,720,699                -                     -                        17,900                2,951,991                  

-                             
     NET REVENUES/EXPENSES (2,256,969)              -                     -                        (17,900)               (2,270,461)                 

ENDING CASH BALANCE 398,139                  -                     -                        (17,900)               384,647                     



CITY OF CARLSBAD
FY 2015-2016 BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS

3RD QTR
                                                                                                                   FEBRUARY

Current Change New
Budget Budget Budget Item #

23‐0230‐61615‐201516 NM RUSH SEMI PRO FOOTBALL 0 8,000 8,000 3
PROMOTIONAL EXPENSE FOR NM RUSH SEMI PRO FOOTBALL APPROVED BY THE LTAB ON 1/5/16

23‐0230‐61607‐201516 PROMOTION CAR‐A‐FAIR CAR SHOW 0 9,900 9,900 4
PROMOTIONAL EXPENSE FOR THE CAR‐A‐FAIR SHOW APPROVED BY THE LTAB ON 1/5/16

TOTAL EXPENDITURES LODGERS' TAX 17,900

NET INC/DEC LODGERS' TAX (17,900)                      



CITY OF CARLSBAD
FY 2015-2016 BUDGET 

BEGINNING 1ST QTR JANUARY FEBRUARY INC/DEC REVISED
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS ADJUSTMENTS ADJUSTMENTS ADJ BUDGET

2002 SALES TAX BOND FUNDS    FUND 56

CASH BALANCE 301,711                  301,711                     

REVENUE -                         -                             
NET TRANSFERS 365,383                  365,383                     
     TOTAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS 365,383                  365,383                     

PERSONNEL EXPENSE -                         -                             
OPERATING EXPENSE 60,383                    595,000              655,383                     
CAPITAL OUTLAY -                         -                             
     TOTAL EXPENSES 60,383                    595,000              655,383                     

     NET REVENUES/EXPENSES 305,000                  (595,000)             (290,000)                    

ENDING CASH BALANCE 606,711                  (595,000)             11,711                       



CITY OF CARLSBAD
FY 2015-2016 BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS

3RD QTR
                                                                                                                   FEBRUARY

Current Change New
Budget Budget Budget Item #

56‐0560‐61130‐000000 PRINCIPAL 0 595,000 595,000 5
PRINCIPAL LOAN PAYMENT FOR FY 14‐15 & FY 15‐16 ON THE 2002 SALES TAX REVENUE BOND

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2002 SALES TAX BOND FUNDS 595,000

NET INC/DEC 2002 SALES TAX BOND FUNDS (595,000)                    



 

 1 

LINKED MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO, HELD IN THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

ON FEBRUARY 4, 2016 AT 4:00 P.M. 
 
Present:  Dale Janway    Mayor    
   Lisa A. Anaya Flores  Councilor 
   Edward T. Rodriguez  Councilor 
   Sandra K. Nunley   Councilor   
   Wesley A. Carter   Councilor 
   Jason Shirley    Councilor 
   Richard Doss    Councilor 
   Janell E. Whitlock   Councilor 
 
Absent:  J. R. Doporto    Councilor 
 
Also Present:  Steve McCutcheon   City Administrator 
   Stephanie Shumsky   Deputy City Administrator 
   Eileen P. Riordan   City Attorney 
   Annette Barrick   City Clerk 
   Monica Harris   Finance Director 
   Jeff Patterson    Planning, Eng., & Reg. Director 
   Luis Camero    Public Works Utilities Director 
   Thomas Carlson   Public Works Director 
   Richard Lopez   Fire Chief  
   Kent D. Waller   Police Chief 
   Patsy Jackson-Christopher  Director of Arts & Culture 
   Steve Hendley   Director of Parks & Recreation 
 
Time Stamps and headings below correspond to recording of meeting and the recording 
is hereby made a part of the official record. 
 
0:00:00  Call Meeting to Order 
 
0:00:02 Invocation – Pledge of Allegiance  
 
0:00:32 Mayor Janway welcomed, Ms. Connie Lee with the Carlsbad Current 
Argus and Mr. Aaron Brewer the Superintendent of the Guadalupe Mountains 
National Park. 
 
0:01:08 1.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
0:01:10 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Doss and seconded by Councilor Rodriguez to 
approve the Agenda 



 

 2 

0:01:14 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Shirley, Carter, Whitlock, Anaya Flores, Doss, Nunley, 
Rodriguez;  No - None;  Absent - Doporto; The motion carried. 
 
0:01:27 2.  SUMMARY OF FACEBOOK COMMENTS REGARDING 
SOLID WASTE  
Mr. McCutcheon explained months ago staff brought items before Council for the 
overhaul of Solid Waste.  He said the Council requested a plan with some detail.  He 
explained tonight the plan will be presented.  He added the Mayor was also very clear 
with the Solid Waste Board to look at efficiency without increasing the costs and to look 
into ways to reduce cost.  He said Carlsbad is one of the highest costs of solid waste 
collectors in the region.  He explained staff and the board understand the direction 
given.  He said in order to reduce costs staff must look at ways to improve efficiency.  
He said staff has put together a video presentation on the new convenience station, 
grappler truck service, and a Facebook page to discuss the convenience station.  Mr. 

McCutcheon said Mr. Marksteiner has done an outstanding job of bringing the 
campaign together with the help of Ms. Shumsky, Mr. Camero, Mr. Hernandez, Mr. 
Ramirez, and the other members of the solid waste team. 
 
0:03:57 Mr. Marksteiner explained he is a contractor with the City of Carlsbad.  
He explained he assists with communication efforts in the community.  He introduced 
Mr. Damian Capello with Red Rocket Video.  He said Mr. Capello has assisted with the 
Facebook aspect and with the video portion.  He also thanked Mr. Brewer with 
Guadalupe Mountains National Park.  He said the glass pulverizer at the convenience 
station is the cornerstone of the process and he is excited about the partnership with 
Guadalupe Mountains National Park.   
 
Mr. Marksteiner explained he spoke with other communities who currently use 
Facebook.  He said it is a great way to get a dialog going.  He explained most of the 
feedback has been very positive.  He began the presentation: 

 Glass only  

 Facebook was used during blizzard for notifications 

 Questions asked  

 Call in the claw    

 Grappler pickup  

 Grand opening for Solid Waste Convenience Drop off Center  

 Fact sheet  

 Getting word out     
 
0:12:44 3.  VIDEO PRESENTATIONS BY KYLE MARKSTEINER 
REGARDING SOLID WASTE SERVICES  
 
0:13:07 A.  Convenience Station  



 

 3 

Mr. Marksteiner explained the video currently has 3,277 views.  He said there has been 
an incredible amount of interest from city employees.   
 
0:15:14 B.  Grappler Truck Service 

Mr. Marksteiner showed a video highlighting the following:  

 Used for bulk trash  

 On call service  

 Registering on line for pick up  

 Residential only  

 311 landline or 234-7901  
 
0:18:14 4.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF SOLID WASTE TIMELINE  
Mr. McCutcheon explained the solid waste fund is an enterprise fund.  He said the 
fund is supposed to be self-sufficient and at this time is not.  He said the goal is to 
improve efficiency so the fund will be self-sufficient.  He explained the plan with 
recommended changes.    
 
0:23:30 Mr. Camero explained the service is one of the highest costs in the State 
but the department provides twice a week service, grappler service, convenience station 
service, recycling, landfill service, and lately have added the roll off service.  He said the 
message was very clear and the board has been looking at many ideas.  He said staff is 
looking into leveling off the rates and becoming more productive and efficient.  He said 
the metal containers need to be done away with and added they require never ending 
maintenance.  He asked the Council to consider the plan being presented tonight. 
 
0:27:05 Mr. Hernandez said the timeline lays out the future for Solid Waste.  
He said this will better serve the customers and be more efficient.  He said there may be 
an option for those customers who would need assistance with the roll out containers. 
 
0:31:22 Mayor Janway thanked Mr. Camero, Mr. Hernandez, and Mr. Stanley and 
the committee for all of the work and the time. 
 
Mr. Stanley introduced the members of the committee:  Mr. Jim Grantner, Councilor 
Anaya Flores, Mr. John Beasley, and Mr. Alvin Doporto.    Mr. Stanley said he would 
like to address the concern for the disabled.  He said he has some friends and family 
that are disabled and they have expressed excitement about receiving a roll out.  He 
said the roll outs are easier than carrying the trash out to the alley.   
 
Councilor Whitlock said she is glad to see that the City is addressing the issue of the 
elderly and disabled.     
 
Mr. Stanley added the roll outs have been tested in several neighborhoods and have 
not received any complaints.    
 



 

 4 

Councilor Nunley asked if there are plans for recycling roll outs.  Mr. Stanley said the 
board is working very hard on a City wide recycling program at this time.    
 
Councilor Rodriguez asked how the larger businesses and restaurants will be handled.  
Mr. McCutcheon said the commercial pickup will remain the same as it is now.    Mr. 

McCutcheon said he would like to add to the recycling question.  He said he and some 
others traveled to El Paso to look at a world class facility, which recycles for everyone in 
this region.  He said the future vision is for everyone to have a roll out and a recycle bin.  
 
0:42:34 Councilor Carter asked how much the cost of closing a cell at the landfill 
is.  Mr. Camero said the last closing was 1.2 million.  Councilor Carter added that this 
plan will also be extending the life of the landfill.   
 
Councilor Carter asked if customers with dumpsters in the alley should continue to put 
trash in the alley for grappler pickup.  Mr. McCutcheon said for now they can put the 
trash in the alley, but in the future would like to have all grappler pick up in the front 
yard.  Councilor Carter said he has received calls from customers that are concerned 
about the grappler truck taking out dirt or tearing out sprinkler heads.  Mr. Hernandez 
said the biggest part of the grappler truck is education of employees.    
 
0:46:00 Mayor Janway said Mr. Marksteiner will be coordinating presentations to 
civic clubs and senior centers.  
 
0:46:52 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Doss and seconded by Councilor Rodriguez to 
approve the Solid Waste Timeline 
 
0:46:57 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Shirley, Carter, Whitlock, Anaya Flores, Doss, Nunley, 
Rodriguez;  No - None;  Absent- Doporto; The motion carried. 
 
0:47:13 Councilor Shirley said he has spoken with people who do not have 
Facebook.  He asked Mayor Janway if a town hall meeting could be held to answer 
questions about Solid Waste before the roll outs in April.  Mayor Janway agreed that 
would be a great idea.  
 
Councilor Shirley added he would like to see the roll out assistance forms available 
online.   
 
0:48:15 5.  SET DATE: (FEB. 23, 2016)  
A.  AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE SALE OF REAL PROPERTY BY EDDY-
LEA ENERGY ALLIANCE, LLC, A NEW MEXICO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 
FORMED PURSUANT TO THE NEW MEXICO JOINT POWERS ACT BY EDDY 
COUNTY, LEA COUNTY, THE CITY OF CARLSBAD AND THE CITY OF HOBBS 



 

 5 

(“ELEA”); AUTHORIZING ELEA TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A LAND 
PURCHASE OPTION AGREEMENT WITH HOLTEC INTERNATIONAL, A 
DELAWARE CORPORATION; AND AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING ELEA TO 
SUBMIT THE AGREEMENT TO THE STATE BOARD OF FINANCE FOR 
APPROVAL PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-6-2.1 NMSA 1978 
 
0:49:07 Councilor Shirley explained the ELEA has been working for a long time 
on this project.   He explained ELEA has partnered with Holtec International which is a 
leading provider of storage of nuclear waste.   He explained Holtec agrees to purchase 
the land for equal or greater to fair market value and obtain all licenses for construction 
and operation of the land.   
 
0:50:20 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Shirley and seconded by Councilor Whitlock to 
approve setting the date of February 23, 2016 for an Ordinance approving the sale of 
Real Property by Eddy-Lea Energy Alliance, LLC, a New Mexico Limited Liability 
Company formed pursuant to the New Mexico Joint Powers Act by Eddy County, Lea 
County, the City of Carlsbad and the City of Hobbs ("ELEA"); authorizing ELEA to 
execute and deliver a Land Purchase Option Agreement with Holtec International, a 
Delaware Corporation; and Authorizing and Directing ELEA to submit the agreement 
to the State Board of Finance for approval pursuant to section 13-6-2.1 NMSA 1978 
 
0:50:27 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Shirley, Carter, Whitlock, Anaya Flores, Doss, Nunley, 
Rodriguez;  No - None;  Absent - Doporto; The motion carried. 
 
0:50:44 6.  COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS  
Councilor Doss said himself, Councilor Shirley, Mr. Volpato, and Mr. Capello attended 
the Bat Brigade in Santa Fe.  He explained they were advocating for the ELEA 
memorandum being presented before the House and Senate.  He said the staff of 
Senator Martinez office called them in for an extensive discussion on the possibility of 
the sinkhole sinking and what it would take to repair the sinkhole.  He added Senator 
Martinez is a proponent of getting the sinkhole fixed.   
 
Mayor Janway added the committee hearing is set for Wednesday and Thursday.   
 
Mr. Stanley said he has a request from the Pecos River Committee for more committee 
members. 
 
0:53:36 7.  ADJOURN  
 
0:53:38 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Whitlock and seconded by Councilor Rodriguez to 
Adjourn 



 

 6 

0:53:43 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Shirley, Carter, Whitlock, Anaya Flores, Doss, Nunley, 
Rodriguez;  No - None;  Absent - Doporto; The motion carried. 
 
0:55:14 Adjourn 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 4:56 p.m. 
 
 
 

__________________________________ 
     Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 

City Clerk 



 

 1 

LINKED MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO, HELD IN THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

ON FEBRUARY 9, 2016 AT 6:00 P.M. 
 
Present:  Dale Janway    Mayor    
   Lisa A. Anaya Flores  Councilor 
   Edward T. Rodriguez  Councilor 
   Sandra K. Nunley   Councilor 
   J. R. Doporto    Councilor   
   Wesley A. Carter   Councilor 
   Richard Doss    Councilor 
   Janell E. Whitlock   Councilor 
 
Absent:  Jason Shirley    Councilor 
 
Also Present:  Steve McCutcheon   City Administrator 
   Stephanie Shumsky   Deputy City Administrator 
   Eileen P. Riordan   City Attorney 
   Annette Barrick   City Clerk 
   Monica Harris   Finance Director 
   Jeff Patterson    Planning, Eng., & Reg. Director 
   Luis Camero    Public Works Utilities Director 
   Thomas Carlson   Public Works Director 
   Richard Lopez   Fire Chief  
   Kent D. Waller   Police Chief 
   Patsy Jackson-Christopher  Director of Arts & Culture 
   Steve Hendley   Director of Parks & Recreation 
 
Time Stamps and headings below correspond to recording of meeting and the recording 
is hereby made a part of the official record. 
 
0:00:00  Call Meeting to Order 
 
0:00:01 Invocation - Pledge of Allegiance  
 
0:00:37 Mayor Janway asked Mr. McCutcheon to join him in presenting service 
awards honoring employees who have achieved 20, 25, and 30 years of service with 
the City of Carlsbad.  Mayor Janway added the City of Carlsbad has outstanding 
employees and we are proud of each one of you. 
 
0:06:25 Mayor Janway wished Mario Salinas a Happy Birthday.  
 
0:06:43 1.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 



 

 2 

0:06:46 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Doporto and seconded by Councilor Anaya Flores 
to approve the Agenda 
 
0:06:54 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Carter, Whitlock, Anaya Flores, Doporto, Doss, Nunley, 
Rodriguez;  No - None;  Absent - Shirley; The motion carried. 
 
0:07:10 2.  ROUTINE AND REGULAR BUSINESS  
A.  Minutes of Regular City Council meeting held January 26, 2016  
B.  Minutes of the Special City Council Meeting held on February 4, 2016  
C.  City Personnel Report  
D.  Purchasing:  

1) Consider approval to Advertise RFP for Third Party Claims Administration 
Services  
2) Consider approval to Award RFP No. 2015-52, to Max Safety for Fire 
Extinguisher Maintenance Services  
3) Consider approval to Award Bid No. 2016-01, to Constructors, Inc., for the 
North Canal Street Resurfacing in the amount of $750,979.86  
4) Consider approval to Award Bid No. 2016-02, to Bobcat of Albuquerque, for 
one (1) Skid Steer Loader in the amount of $16,171.40  
5) Consider approval to Award Bid No. 2016-03, to Hall Brite Inc., for two (2) 
Runway Closure Markers in the amount of $33,164.84  
6) Consider approval to Award Bid No. 2016-05, to GEFE Inc., for twenty-eight 
(28) Paperback Book Spinner Racks for the Carlsbad Library in the amount of 
$20,772.80  
7) Consider approval to Award RFP No. 2014-51, to HDR Engineering Inc., for 
Engineering Services for the Effluent Reuse Phase 5B Project contingent upon 
NMED approval  
8) Consider approval of CES proposal, to MHat, LLC, for the Carlsbad Police 
Department Security Fence Project  

E.  Contracts and Agreements:  
1) Consider approval of Cooperative Project Agreement with NMDOT for FY 
2016 National Highway Performance Program, San Jose Boulevard Project  
2) Consider approval of Memorandum of Agreement between the City of 
Carlsbad and Eddy County for the use of a portion of the Loop Road Tower for 
the placement, operations and maintenance of a City Power Generator, building, 
and telecommunications equipment for simulcast radio antennas and equipment  
3) Consider approval of Memorandum of Understanding between the City of 
Carlsbad and Eddy County for the Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Project #2015-
H4212-NMDJ for funding to be used for School Related Events and the Wise 
Eyes Program    

F.  Set Dates: (March 22, 2016)  



 

 3 

1) An Ordinance Rezoning Part of “R-2” Residential District to “C-2” 
Commercial District for an approximately 0.632 acre property, located at 814 N. 
Canal Street, legally described as Lot 13, Block 108, North Carlsbad Subdivision, 
pursuant to Section 3-21-1 et. seq. NMSA 1978 and Sections 56-150(B) and 56-
140(I), Carlsbad Code of Ordinances  

G.  Monthly Reports:  
1) Personnel Department Monthly Report, January, 2016  
2) Transportation and Facilities Monthly Report, December, 2015 

 
0:07:31 Mayor Janway asked Mr. McCutcheon to discuss Item D.3 Consider 
approval to Award Bid No. 2016-01, to Constructors, Inc., for the North Canal Street 
resurfacing in the amount of $750,979.86 and Item D.8 Consider approval of CES 
proposal, to MHat, LLC, for the Carlsbad Police Department Security Fence Project. 
Mr. McCutcheon said Item D.3 is the award of the bid to Constructors for resurfacing 
North Canal.  He explained this is a joint project with the County and is to be shared on 
a per foot basis.  He said the County has a little more area, so their percentage will be 
higher.  He said the project came in lower than the engineers estimate and staff expects 
to move forward with the project.   
 
0:08:22 Councilor Whitlock asked if Item E.2 Consider approval of Memorandum 
of Agreement between the City of Carlsbad and Eddy County for the use of a portion of 
the Loop Road Tower for the placement, operations and maintenance of a City Power 
Generator, building, and telecommunications equipment for simulcast radio antennas 
and equipment could be removed from the Agenda.  
 
0:08:54 Mr. McCutcheon explained Item D.8 is a new fence for the Carlsbad 
Police Department.  He said the fence will keep the leased and stored vehicles.  He 
explained MHat fencing is a CES approved contractor and also his son.  He stated that 
he has no involvement with his sons business and added he has previously made 
disclosures to Council and to the Clerk regarding the relationship.   
 
0:09:48 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Nunley and seconded by Councilor Doss to 
approve Routine and Regular Business and the removal of Item E.2 
 
0:09:55 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Carter, Whitlock, Anaya Flores, Doporto, Doss, Nunley, 
Rodriguez;  No - None;  Absent - Shirley; The motion carried. 
 
0:10:11 3.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF APPEAL OF THE PLANNING 
AND ZONING COMMISSION’S DECISION TO DENY A VARIANCE REQUEST 
FROM SECTION 56-90(B) TO ALLOW A FRONT-YARD SETBACK VARIANCE OF 
21’, WHICH WOULD RESULT IN A 9’ FRONT-YARD SETBACK AT 1803 SOLANA 
ST., R-1 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT; APPELLANT: GARY HARDESTY  



 

 4 

Mr. Patterson said this item is a consideration of an appeal of a decision made by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission at the January 4, 2016 meeting.  He explained the 
applicant, Mr. Hardesty, requested a variance to place a carport in the front set back.  
He explained the carport encroached 21 feet into the 30' setback and left 9 feet at the 
front of the property.   
 
Councilor Whitlock said she understands there was no permit to build a carport.  Mr. 

Patterson said yes, when Mr. Hardesty built the carport he did not pull a building 
permit or apply for a variance.  He said the carport came to the attention of staff due to 
a complaint from a neighbor.  Councilor Nunley asked if he has applied for a building 
permit.  Mr. Patterson answered yes, he has applied for a permit.  Councilor Doss 
asked how is a permit issued if the applicant is in violation of the restrictions.  Mr. 

Patterson said, normally a permit is not issued but since it was already built he was 
issued a permit that can be revoked if variance is not granted. 
 
0:13:58 Mr. Hardesty said it is true he did not get a permit.  He explained he 
started the process a few years ago.  He said there were so many hoops to jump through 
that he gave up on the project.  He said last year he saw so many carports going up that 
he called the office of the building inspector and left messages with no return call.  He 
said he spoke with people in the subdivision who had put up the carports, adding that 
most of them did not get building permits.  He said he does not want to remove the 
carport.  He added a lot of his neighbors have commented on how nice the carport 
looks.  He said he would like to protect his vehicles.     
 
Mayor Janway added Mr. Hardesty has a very nice, neat home and keeps the home up.   
 
Councilor Carter asked who built the carport.  Mr. Hardesty said he purchased the 
carport from Affordable Portables.  Councilor Carter asked if Affordable Portables 
should have pulled the permit for the carport.  He asked should they not be held 
accountable.  Mr. Patterson said that he made contact with the individuals that sell 
these and other portables, informing them that they need to pull permits to install the 
carports.  Councilor Carter asked should business licenses be pulled if these businesses 
continue to sell and install without permits.    
 
Councilor Doporto said he would not mind changing the ordinance to allow carports.  
He said he would have a problem with enclosed carports, he added these types of 
carports do not obstruct views, they look nice, and people need carports to protect their 
vehicles.   
 
Councilor Whitlock added she drove through the neighborhood and was shocked at 
how big the carport was.    
 



 

 5 

0:19:15 Mr. Hardesty read a letter from his neighbor, Mr. Allen Pistole, who is in 
favor of the variance.  He said if he has to remove his carport there will be a lot of 
people who are upset.   
 
Councilor Nunley asked Mr. Hardesty if his home had a garage that has been enclosed.  
Mr. Hardesty said yes, a long time ago. 
 
0:20:54 Mayor Janway asked if anyone would like to speak in favor or against 
the variance.  
Mr. Buzz Sexton said these carports are everywhere around the State.  He said people 
are going to buy them and install them with or without a permit.  He explained he 
drove around and took pictures of 30 carports in about 1.5 hours.  He said Mr. Hardesty 
has one of the neatest yards, houses, and carports he has ever seen.  He explained the 
distributors are not state licensed contractors.  He said he understands the want and 
need to protect vehicles.  He asked Council to look at the Ordinance and possibly make 
some changes to allow carports.  He said these carports do not block the view, are 
sturdy, and open on all sides.   
 
Mr. Alan Tedford said there are probably over 150 of these carports around town.  He 
said he feels the City should review the Ordinance.  He said as long as it looks nice and 
is not trashy it should be allowed.     
 
Mr. James Ballard explained he has lived across the street from Mr. Hardesty for over 
30 years.  He said the only problem he sees is that Mr. Hardesty did not get the variance 
and permit before the carport.  He said the carport is very tastefully done.  He added 
you cannot blame a man for trying to protect his vehicles.  He asked Council to allow 
the variance and review the current Ordinance. 
 
0:30:02 Mr. McCutcheon said Ms. Shumsky and Mr. Patterson are preparing a 
revision of several items in the zoning code.  He added if Council is inclined to revise 
the Ordinance, now is the time.  Mayor Janway added Ms. Shumsky has been asked to 
specifically look at this particular Ordinance.  
 
0:30:53 Councilor Carter asked how this issue was brought to the attention of the 
planning department.  Mr. Patterson said the department received a complaint.   
 
Councilor Nunley asked Chief Lopez if he has had any trouble with these carports.  
Chief Lopez answered no.  He said the metal carports are not an issue and are rated 
properly.   
 
Councilor Anaya Flores said she recalls a previous request that was not approved.  She 
said she appreciates the beauty and function of the structure but feels Council needs to 
be even handed and fair. 
 



 

 6 

0:33:13 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Doporto to approve the Appeal of the Planning and 
Zoning Commission's decision to deny a variance request from Section 56-90(b) to allow 
a front-yard setback variance of 21', which would result in a 9' front-yard setback at 
1803 Solana St., R-1 Residential District: Appellant:  Gary Hardesty 
 
0:33:30 Motion dies due to lack of a second  
 
0:33:34 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Doporto and seconded by Councilor Rodriguez to 
table appeal of the Planning and Zoning Commission's decision to deny a variance 
request from section 56-90(b) to allow a front-yard setback variance of 21', which would 
result in a 9' front-yard setback at 1803 Solana St., R-1 Residential District; Appellant; 
Gary Hardesty; to allow staff to review the Ordinance and make necessary changes 
 
0:34:11 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Carter, Doporto, Doss, Nunley, Rodriguez;  No - 
Whitlock, Anaya Flores;  Absent - Shirley; The motion carried.   
Councilor Whitlock explained that because Mr. Hardesty knew he needed a permit and 
skirted the law, she has to vote no.  Councilor Anaya Flores explained in all fairness she 
is voting no. 
 
0:35:31 Mayor Janway asked Ms. Shumsky when she would be able to return to 
Council with a draft.  Ms. Shumsky said staff has compiled all of the comments 
received over the last couple of years relating to the zoning code adopted in 2011.  She 
explained staff has completed their review and she is compiling all the final comments.  
She said she could have it before Council within 60 days, which would be the first 
meeting of April. 
 
0:36:38 4.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE NO. 2016-08, AN 
ORDINANCE CREATING SECTION 6-17 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY 
OF CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO REGARDING PIGEON NUISANCES AND 
PROHIBITING THE HARBORAGE OR FEEDING OF FERAL PIGEONS  
Ms. Riordan explained there are several native species of pigeon, only one of which is 
known in the area and not typically found within the City of Carlsbad.  She explained 
this does not address native pigeons; the Ordinance is addressing Feral Pigeons or Rock 
Doves.  She said there have been some problems recently that have been brought to the 
city from a number of different business owners.  She explained the business owners 
have large flocks of pigeons that have been using their empty or occupied buildings.  
She said problems are that pigeons nest and poop everywhere.  She explained staff 
looked into the problems and different national health organizations recognize that 
pigeon droppings carry different forms of bacteria that can be dangerous to people.  She 
said staff has researched the best ways to control pigeon populations and determined 
what controls there population is limiting their roosting spots and their feeding.  She 



 

 7 

said this Ordinance would make it illegal to feed feral pigeons.  She explained this 
Ordinance would require people to clean up areas of their property that would provide 
pigeon harborage.  She said the first step is public awareness and if the request is 
ignored the citizens could be cited with a petty misdemeanor in City Court.   
 
Mr. McCutcheon said this is the first step to try to get the pigeon problem under 
control.   
 
Mr. Rodriguez asked if the City is asking business owners to take on the expense of the 
removal of pigeons.  Ms. Riordan said if the property is found to have an excessive 
amount of dead pigeons due to nesting, yes the City can request for the area to be 
cleaned up or removed. 
 
0:42:08 A.  Public Hearing  
 
0:42:11 Mayor Janway asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the 
Ordinance.  
Mr. Gary Lanier, owner of Nichols Printing, explained over the past 15 to 20 years he 
has been addressing the problem of dead pigeons and carcasses on his building and the 
surrounding areas.  He said there is a particular business near his business that feeds 
pigeons about 50 lbs of feed per day or every other day.  He said he has questioned the 
business owner feeding the pigeons about feeding the birds and why, and was told a lot 
of the people who stay there like to BBQ them.  He said the pigeons have become a 
complete nuisance and he has spent thousands of dollars trying to get rid of them.  He 
said they are directly coming from the Executive Inn and have become very annoying.  
He said he appreciates that the City has taken the first step in solving the pigeon 
problem.     
 
Mr. Allen Tedford, owner of Allen’s Auto and Cycle Supply, said he brought the 
property in 2001 and has hired people to trap 400 or 500 pigeons on his roof.  He said 
there is a big problem with the pigeon’s downtown.  He said he is glad Council is 
taking a step to begin to solve the pigeon problem.     
 
Councilor Anaya Flores said the proprietors of the business that is feeding the pigeons 
are of East Indian decent and she is worried about religious freedoms.  She said she is 
worried about infringing on their rights.    Ms. Riordan explained the owner or his 
family have not alleged to staff or others that feeding the pigeons is for a religious 
purpose.  She said if it were for a religious purpose there would have to be a balancing 
of interest.  She said the right to practice your faith should not expose others to a health 
risk. 
 
0:51:12 Mayor Janway asked if anyone would like to speak against the 
Ordinance.   No one appeared and the Mayor declared the public hearing closed and 
reconvened the Council in regular session.   



 

 8 

0:51:19 B.  Consider Ordinance No. 2016-08  

 
0:51:28 Councilor Whitlock said she supports the Ordinance, but has friends who 
feed birds and are concerned they will be required to stop.  Ms. Riordan said the 
Ordinance does not prohibit people from having a bird feeder or feeding birds.  She 
said if your feeding attracts pigeons, the behavior will need to be altered.  She added 
the first step in the Ordinance is education and to inform the public. 
 
0:53:27 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Rodriguez and seconded by Councilor Whitlock to 
approve Ordinance No. 2016-08, an Ordinance creating section 6-17 of the Code of 
Ordinances, City of Carlsbad, New Mexico regarding Pigeon Nuisances and Prohibiting 
the Harborage or Feeding of Feral Pigeons 
 
0:53:34 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Carter, Whitlock, Anaya Flores, Doporto, Doss, Nunley, 
Rodriguez;  No - None;  Absent - Shirley; The motion carried. 
 
0:54:00 5.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE NO. 2016-09 AN 
ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCES NO 2011-01 AND 2012-10 REGARDING 
THE CITY OF CARLSBAD POLICE DEPARTMENT’S CITIZEN ADVISORY 
BOARD; DECREASING THE NUMBER OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD FROM 
NINE TO SEVEN, AMENDING THE MEMBERS’ RESIDENCY REQUIREMENTS, 
AND CHANGING THE FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS FROM MONTHLY TO 
QUARTERLY  
 
0:54:31 A.  Public Hearing  
 
0:54:33 Chief Waller explained since he became Chief two years ago; the Citizen 
Advisory Board has struggled with meeting due to no quorum.   He said the Board is 
very active and are looking to enhance the Board and keep the engagement for the 
purpose of beginning the Board.  He said the Board has made the following 
recommendations:  

 Reduce the number of members  

 Change meetings to quarterly  

 Amending residency requirements 
 
0:57:15 Mayor Janway asked if anyone would like to speak regarding this issue.   
No one appeared and the Mayor declared the public hearing closed and reconvened 
the Council in regular session.   
 
0:57:36 B.  Consider Ordinance No. 2016-09  
 
 



 

 9 

0:57:42 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Carter and seconded by Councilor Rodriguez to 
approve Ordinance No. 2016-09 an Ordinance Amending Ordinances No. 2011-01 and 
2012-10, regarding the City of Carlsbad Police Department's Citizen Advisory Board; 
Decreasing the Number of Members of the Board from Nine to Seven, Amending the 
Members' Residency Requirements, and changing the Frequency of Meetings from 
Monthly to Quarterly 
 
0:57:46 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Carter, Whitlock, Anaya Flores, Doporto, Doss, Nunley, 
Rodriguez;  No - None;  Absent - Shirley; The motion carried. 
 
0:58:00 6.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-06, A 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A WATER 
PROJECT FUND LOAN/GRANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE NEW MEXICO 
FINANCE AUTHORITY AND THE CITY OF CARLSBAD FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF THE WASTEWATER EFFLUENT REUSE PHASE 5A 
PROJECT, WTB GRANT NO. 328  
Mr. McCutcheon said this has been before Council to authorize staff to apply for the 
loan, submit documents, and now in the form of Resolution to allow the Mayor and 
staff to execute the loan fund agreement.  He said the agreement is for a $1.5 million 
grant and $1 million dollar loan to move forward on the Effluent Project Phase 5A. 
 
0:59:14 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Doss and seconded by Councilor Anaya Flores to 
approve Resolution No. 2016-06, a Resolution authorizing the execution and delivery of 
a Water Project Fund Loan/Grant Agreement between the New Mexico Finance 
Authority and the City of Carlsbad for the construction of the Wastewater Effluent 
Reuse Phase 5A Project, WTB Grant no. 328 
 
0:59:20 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Carter, Whitlock, Anaya Flores, Doporto, Doss, Nunley, 
Rodriguez;  No - None;  Absent - Shirley; The motion carried. 
 
0:59:34 7.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-09, A 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PLAN, DESIGN, AND CONSTRUCTION 
IMPROVEMENTS TO CALLAWAY DRIVE, INCLUDING UTILITIES, LIGHTING, 
SIDEWALKS, AND PEDESTRIAN AMENITIES BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
CARLSBAD AND THE NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
(NMDOT)  
Mr. McCutcheon explained this is a grant that the City received last year from the 
legislature to help with Calloway Drive.  He said Calloway Drive has been a struggle 
with the costs that have come in and this grant will help.  He said the design will be 
complete in March with portions that staff can start on and complete with the money 



 

 10 

available.  He explained this Resolution allows the City to accept the grant funds from 
NMDOT. 
 
 1:01:05 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Nunley and seconded by Councilor Rodriguez to 
approve Resolution No. 2016-09, a Resolution authorizing the Plan, Design, and 
Construction Improvements to Callaway Drive, including utilities, lighting, sidewalks, 
and pedestrian amenities between the City of Carlsbad and the New Mexico 
Department of Transportation  
 
 1:01:11 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Carter, Whitlock, Anaya Flores, Doporto, Doss, Nunley, 
Rodriguez;  No - None;  Absent - Shirley; The motion carried. 
 
 1:01:22 8.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-10, A 
RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN CITY PROPERTY UNUSABLE OR 
OBSOLETE  
Mr. McCutcheon explained this is the standard Resolution for following statute to 
dispose of obsolete and unusable City property. 
 
 1:02:36 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Nunley and seconded by Councilor Doporto to 
approve Resolution No. 2016-10, a Resolution declaring certain City Property unusable 
or obsolete 
 
 1:02:42 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Carter, Whitlock, Anaya Flores, Doporto, Doss, Nunley, 
Rodriguez;  No - None;  Absent - Shirley; The motion carried. 
 
 1:02:56 9.  COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS  
Mayor Janway asked for a report on the Bat Brigade.  Councilor Rodriguez explained 
this was his first trip to the Bat Brigade and he felt it was a very fruitful venture.  He 
said they met with key people such as the Governor and the Lt. Govenor, and Mr. Tom 
Church the Secretary of Transportation.    
 
Councilor Nunley introduced Garret Carrasco, a member of the Mayor's Student 
Advisory Council who stayed for the Council meeting.  She explained the Mayor's 
Student Advisory Council is made up of students nominated by the principals of 
schools who meet quarterly and talk about issues related to the youth of Carlsbad.    
 
Mayor Janway thanked Councilor Nunley for the work she does with the Student 
Advisory Council. 
 



 

 11 

 1:05:50 10.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MEMORANDUM OF 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF CARLSBAD AND EDDY COUNTY FOR 
THE USE OF A PORTION OF THE LOOP ROAD TOWER FOR THE PLACEMENT, 
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE OF A CITY POWER GENERATOR, 
BUILDING, AND TELECOMMUNICATION EQUIPMENT FOR SIMULCAST 
RADIO ANTENNAS AND EQUIPMENT  
Councilor Whitlock said she requested to pull item E.2 to amend the dates.  She said 
the agreement dates start and end on the same date.  She said the agreement should 
expire in 2026.  
 
 1:06:49 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Whitlock and seconded by Councilor Doporto to 
approve Memorandum of Agreement between the City of Carlsbad and Eddy County 
for the use of a portion of the Loop Road Tower for the placement,operations and 
maintenance of a City Power generator, building, and telecommunication equipment 
for simulcast radio antennas and equipment with the dates amended 
 
 1:07:15 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Carter, Whitlock, Anaya Flores, Doporto, Doss, Nunley, 
Rodriguez;  No - None;  Absent - Shirley; The motion carried. 
 
 1:07:27 11.  ADJOURN  
 
 1:07:29 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Whitlock and seconded by Councilor Rodriguez to 
Adjourn 
 
 1:07:39 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Carter, Whitlock, Anaya Flores, Doporto, Doss, Nunley, 
Rodriguez;  No - None;  Absent - Shirley; The motion carried. 
 
 1:07:54 Adjourn 

 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:11 p.m. 
 
 

__________________________________ 
     Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 

City Clerk 



APPOINTMENTS: 

NAME 

Daniel Vasquez 

TERMINATIONS: 

NAME 

Gari Roberts 

DATE 

02/29/16 

DATE 

02/15116 

CITY OF CARLSBAD 
PERSONNEL REPORT 

February 23, 2016 

DEPARTMENT 

Police 

CLASSIFICATION 

Corporal 

CLASSIFICATION REASON DEPARTMENT 

Police School Crossing Guard Declined job offer 

INTERNAL TRANSFERS AND PROMOTIONS: 

NAME 

Terra Dougan 

David Perez 

DATE 

02/15/16 

02/01 / 16 

DEPARTMENT CLASSIFICATION 

Solid Waste Solid Waste Coordinator 

Facil ity Maintenance Facil ity Maintenance 



CITY OF CARLSBAD 

RECOMMENDATION FOR EMPLOYMENT 
Dale Janway, Mayor Steve McCutcheon, City Administrator 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

The Honorable Mayor Dale Jamvay & Members of the City Council 

D. Kent Walle~// (.{) 
Reconunendation for Employment 

02/16/16 

The following applicant has met all pre-employment requirements and is hereby reconunended for 
employment with the City of Carlsbad subject to a pre-hire medical examination: 

General Information: 

Name: Daniel J. Vasquez 
Department: ...;.P....;o;_;li.;;...ce,;__ _______ _ 

I/' I Regular 

D Seasonal 

D Temporary 

Education Level: 

[{] 
D 
D 

Full-time 

Pa11-time 

On call 

l/'1 High School Diploma 

D Associates Degree 

D Bachelors Degree 

D Masters Degree 

Classification/Position: Corporal 

[{] Hourly $ 30.88 

D Salary $ 

D GED or equivalent 

l/'1 Other 
Southeast New Mexico Law Enforcement Academy 

Employment: 

per hour 

per annum 

Present or last Employer: _1=-n_te_,.g'-ri ..... ty_W_e_II_S_e_rv_ic_e __________ _____ __ _ 
From Oct 2014 to Present Classification: --=-S=af:.=e::..~.tY....:C::..:o::..;o:.:..rd::..:i:...:;na::..:t.=..or;__ ______ _ 
Duties: Safety regulation compliance 

Related Experience: Police Officer for Carlsbad from Dec 2002-April 2004, Deputy from Eddy County from 

2004 to June 2011 , Deputy for Eddy County from October 2011 to June 201 2. Deputy for Lea County from Oct 2013 to Sept 2014 

Comments: Police Officer Certification is active. 

PF-13 03/10 



CITY OF CARLSBAD

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM
PURCHASING RECOMMENDATION 

Council Meeting Date:       
Department:        BY:        Date:        

SUBJECT:
Description:        

SYNOPSIS:       Qty                      Total Est. Cost                                            Total Actual Cost 

           Budgeted                Est. City Share                                  Actual City Share 

   Account # 

           Account #

           Account # 

           Account # 

                                                                   TOTAL

BACKGROUND, JUSTIFICATION AND IMPACT: (Safety and Welfare/Financial/Personnel/Infrastructure/etc.) 

  Requested action to be taken by Council: Council Action Taken:                                      Date:

Reviewed by City Administrator: 

POST BID/RFP RECOMMENDATION Council Meeting Date:
  Requested action to be taken by Council:                                  Council Action Taken:                         Date:

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

Reviewed by City Administrator:                           

ATTACHMENT(S):      Specifications        Bid/RFP Summary        Other:        

2/23/16

Fire/Police Dept. Matt Fletcher, Purchasing Mgr. 2/17/16
Services

Medical Director for City of Carlsbad Fire and Police Department

1 $ 15,000.00 $ 15,000.00
Select one $ 15,000.00
01-0050-60040 $ 10,800.00
01-0040-60040 $ 4,200.00

$ 15,000.00

The City of Carlsbad solicited proposal for Medical Director Services for the Fire and Police
Department. Only one proposal was received from EMSRx. The proposal was reviewed by
personnel at the Carlsbad Fire Department and Police Department and EMSRx was determined to
be well qualified to meet the terms and conditions of the contract.

The annual cost for the service will be $15,000 of which $10,800 will be paid for by the Fire
Department budget and $4,200 will be paid for from the Police Department budget.

Select one

Select one

Select one

Award RFP Number 2015-47

The City recommends awarding RFP 2015-47 to EMSRx

jabarrick
Typewritten Text
/s/ Steve McCutcheon 			Feb. 17, 2016

jabarrick
Typewritten Text



CITY OF CARLSBAD

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM
PURCHASING RECOMMENDATION 

Council Meeting Date:       
Department:        BY:        Date:        

SUBJECT:
Description:        

SYNOPSIS:       Qty                      Total Est. Cost                                            Total Actual Cost 

           Budgeted                Est. City Share                                  Actual City Share 

   Account # 

           Account #

           Account # 

           Account # 

                                                                   TOTAL

BACKGROUND, JUSTIFICATION AND IMPACT: (Safety and Welfare/Financial/Personnel/Infrastructure/etc.) 

  Requested action to be taken by Council: Council Action Taken:                                      Date:

Reviewed by City Administrator: 

POST BID/RFP RECOMMENDATION Council Meeting Date:
  Requested action to be taken by Council:                                  Council Action Taken:                         Date:

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

Reviewed by City Administrator:                           

ATTACHMENT(S):      Specifications        Bid/RFP Summary        Other:        

2/23/16

 Executive Matt Fletcher, Purchasing Mgr. 2/17/16
Services

RFP for Comprehensive Healthcare Study and Assessment

1 $ 50,000.00
No $ 50,000.00
01-0010-60040 $ 50,000.00

$ 50,000.00

The City of Carlsbad conducted an RFP to solicit proposals from firms to perform a Comprehensive
Healthcare Study and Assessement of the existing medical services being provided in the city of
Carlsbad. The City of Carlsbad received four proposals from qualified firms. However, the
proposed cost of the study exceeded the anticipated budget. Therefore, the City is recommending
the rejection of all proposals received, pending a narrowing of the scope of work to bring the overall
cost of the project within an acceptable budget amount.

Other:

Select one

Select one

Reject and Rebid RFP Number 2015-48

The City recommends rejecting all proposals submitted for RFP 2015-48.

jabarrick
Typewritten Text
/s/ Steve McCutcheon 			Feb. 17, 2016



CITY OF CARLSBAD

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM
PURCHASING RECOMMENDATION 

Council Meeting Date:       
Department:        BY:        Date:        

SUBJECT:
Description:        

SYNOPSIS:       Qty                      Total Est. Cost                                            Total Actual Cost 

           Budgeted                Est. City Share                                  Actual City Share 

   Account # 

           Account #

           Account # 

           Account # 

                                                                   TOTAL

BACKGROUND, JUSTIFICATION AND IMPACT: (Safety and Welfare/Financial/Personnel/Infrastructure/etc.) 

  Requested action to be taken by Council: Council Action Taken:                                      Date:

Reviewed by City Administrator: 

POST BID/RFP RECOMMENDATION Council Meeting Date:
  Requested action to be taken by Council:                                  Council Action Taken:                         Date:

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

Reviewed by City Administrator:                           

ATTACHMENT(S):      Specifications        Bid/RFP Summary        Other:        

02-23-2016

Sports Complex Jason Burns - Projects 02-17-2017
Infrastructure

Carlsbad Youth Sports Complex Expansion

1 $ 113,079.01
Yes $ 113,079.01
29-0290-86540-902015 $ 5,667,600.00

$ 5,667,600.00

The City has been directed to construct the expansion at the Bob Forrest Youth Sports Complex,
which includes baseball, soccer, softball, and parking lot expansion. The City has review the design
along with the proposals for the first phase of the expansion of the Bob Forrest Youth Sports
Complex, which includes the 4 new baseball fields that will be utilized by the "National League."

This portion of the project is to provide nylon netting and aluminum framed bleachers for each of
the new fields being constructed during the Baseball Phase of the 2016 Baseball.

Select one

Select one

Select one

02/23/2016

Award Bid Number 02/17/2016

Council consideration is requested to consider the award of a CES contract to AK Sales and Consulting,
Inc. to provide the nylon netting and aluminum bleacher for each of the new fields, as proposed.

✔

jabarrick
Typewritten Text
/s/ Steve McCutcheon 			Feb. 17, 2016



A. K. Sales and Consulting, Inc 

115 E. Country Club 
Roswell, NM 88201 

Name I Address 

Carlsbad Parks and Rec. Dept. 
Attn: John Lowe 
PO Box 1569 
Carlsbad, NM 88221 
New Youth Ball fields 

Quote 
Date Estimate# 

1/28/2016 5350 

Terms 

Due on receipt 

Quantity Description Total List Price Discount Total 

Pee-Wee fie1ds-
(3) Backstops: Netting 36-Nylon #36 Black I 3/4" Sq. 

$1 ,414.78 ea. after discount 
(2) ea. Netting Hardware - $220.00 ea. after discount 
(3) ea. 5# spool of#84 Lacing Twine (1 spool per backstop). 

$52.80 ea. after discount. 

**No Dugout Netting Quoted for Pee-Wee Fields. 

Tee-Ball f ield-
{1) Backstops: Netting 36-Nylon #36 Black I 3/4" Sq. 
( 1) ea. Netting Hardware 
(2) ea. 5# spool of#84 Lacing Twine. $52.80 ea. after discount. 

**Includes Backstop, Overhang, and Dugouts. 

4,823.11 

500.00 
180.00 

2,425.55 
250.00 
120.00 

Cost of freight for all fields 468.20 

Installation of above netting at (I) T-Ball Field and (3) Pee-Wee 16,589.50 
Fields, includes equipment rental. 

**Netting has been quoted according to drawings provided** 
***No Post, or Eyelets Quoted. Posts are to be installed by 
builder prior to the installation of netting. 

CES 15-02CB-C202-ALL 

Phone# Fax# E-mail 

575-623-1488 575-623-0488 aksalesnm@gmail.com 

578.77 

60.00 
21.60 

291.07 
30.00 
14.40 

Subtotal 

Sales Tax (7.5625%) 

Total 

4,244.34 

440.00 
158.40 

2,134.48 
220.00 
105.60 

468.20 

16,589.50T 

$24,360.52 

$ 1,254.58 

$25,615.10 



A. K. Sales and ConSIJlltng, Inc 
115 E. Country Club 
Roswell, NM 88201 

Name I Address 

Carlsbad Parks and Rec. Dept. 
Attn: John Lowe 
PO Box 1569 
Carlsbad. NM 8822 I 
New Ball Fields Youth Sports Complex 

Quote 
Date Estimate# 

1/4/20 16 535 1 

Terms 

Due on receipt 

Quantity Description Total List Price Discount Total 

(6) ca. 5 row x 21' Long, Aluminum Non-Elevated Welded Angle 34,425.00 
Frame Bleacher: 

-First Seat 17" Above Grade 
- 8" Rise/24" Tread Depth 
-2x I 0 Anodized Scats 
-Double 2x I 0 Mill Finish Footboards On All Rows 
-Powder Coated Blue I x6 Riser On All Rows 
-Power Coated Blue 2x I 0 Mill Finish Riser Last Row Only 
-Guardrail System Consists of2!Line Rail With Chain Link 
Fence On The Back And 3/Line Rail with Chain Link Fence On 
The Sides To Row 3 
-2 Single Cut Outs For Handicap Accessibi lity 
-One 4' Wide Aisle With Contrasting osing And Aisle Handrail 

$5, 163.75 ea. after discount 

CES 15-02CB-C 122-ALL 

Phone# Fax# E-mail 

575-623-1488 575-623-0488 aksalesnm@gmail.com 

Page 1 

3.442.50 30,982.50T 

Subtotal 

Sales Tax (7.5625%) 

Total 



A. K. Sales and Consulting, Inc 

I 15 E. Country Club 
Roswell , NM 8820 I 

Name I Address 

Carlsbad Parks and Rec. Dept. 
Attn: John Lowe 
PO Box 1569 
Carlsbad, NM 8822 I 
New Ball Fields Youth Sports Complex 

Quote 
Date Estimate# 

1/4/2016 535 1 

Terms 

Due on receipt 

Quantity Description Total List Price Discount Total 

(2) ea. 8 row x 2 1' Long, Aluminum Non-Elevated Welded Angle 17,845.00 
Frame Bleacher: 

-First Seat I 7" Above Grade 
-8" Rise/24" Tread Depth 
-2xl0 Anodized Seats 
-Double 2xl0 Mill Finish Footboards On All Rows 
-Powder Coated Blue I x6 Riser On All Rows 
-Power Coated Blue 2x I 0 Mill Finish Riser Last Row Only 
-Guardrail System Consists of2/Linc Rail With Chain Link 
Fence On The Back And 3/Line Ra il with Chain Link Fence On 
The Sides To Row 3 
-One 4' Wide Aisle With Contrasting Nosing And Aisle Handrail 
-2 Single Cut Outs For Handicap Accessibility 

58.030.25 ea. after discount 
Cost of fi·eight: 5,500.00 
***Freight reflects all 8 bleachers shipping at once. If bleachers 
arc broke up or quantity changed freight wi ll be revised. 

Installation of the above 8 bleachers units 28,301.50 

Bond 470.00 

CES 15-02CB-C 122-ALL 

Phone# Fax# E-mail 

575-623- 1488 575-623-0488 aksalesnm@gmail.com 

Page 2 

1.784.50 16,060.50T 

5,500.00T 

28.301.50T 

470.00T 

Subtotal 

Sales Tax (7.5625%) 

Total 



A. K. Sales and Consulting, Inc 
I 15 E. Country Club 
Roswell, NM 88201 

Name I Address 

Carlsbad Parks and Rec. Dept. 
Attn: John Lowe 
PO Box 1569 
Carlsbad, NM 88221 
New Ball Fields Youth Sports Complex 

Quantity Description 

"'**No Concrete Quoted*** 

***Above Bleachers have been designed to rest on firm, flat and 
leve l surface; no provisions have been included for anchorage to 
prevent wind overtuming; this will be the responsibility of the 
customer.*** 

***See Attached Drawings for Recommended Concrete Pad Size 
for each Bleacher Quoted. Concrete Pad to be provided by 
others. 

CES l5-02CB-Cl22-ALL 

Phone# Fax# E-mail 

575-623- 1488 575-623-0488 aksalesnm@gmail.com 

Page 3 

Quote 
Date Estimate# 

l/4/20 16 5351 

Terms 

Due on receipt 

Total List Price Discount Total 

Subtotal $81 ,314.50 

Sales Tax (7.5625%) $6.149.4 1 

Total $87,463.91 



CITY OF CARLSBAD 
AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 

                        Council Meeting Date: 2/23/16 
DEPARTMENT: Planning, 
Engineering, and Regulation 

BY: Jeff Patterson, Planning 
Director 

 DATE: 2/17/16 
 

SUBJECT: Approval of an application and recommendation to the City Council regarding the Infrastructure 
Reimbursement for Atwood Subdivision. 
 
Applicant:  
Kay Atwood 
502 Farris St. 
Carlsbad, NM 88220 
 
HISTORY: In 2008, the City Council adopted an Infrastructure Reimbursement Program whereby the City 
could reimburse private property owners and developers a certain percentage of qualifying infrastructure 
costs. This program was revised in 2012 to increase the percentage of allowable reimbursement and to 
clarify the definition of “qualifying Infrastructure”. Since inception of the program, there have been various 
methods of application review and recommendation to the City Council. Most recently, an ad hoc 
“Development Committee” reviewed these types of applications. Due to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission’s expertise in the area of planning and development and their familiarity with the projects 
involved in the applications, it was determined that the Commission is the most appropriate entity to review 
these applications.  
 
The Commission’s task is to verify that the applications were completed, submitted and reviewed according 
to the program’s design and recommend to the City Council an amount for reimbursement. The process that 
is followed for application submittal and review is described in the Infrastructure Reimbursement Program 
application. City staff, including the Planning Director, Public Works Director and Utilities Director, have 
reviewed the application, verified that the calculations, quantities and costs are correct and provided a 
recommended amount for reimbursement. A synopsis of this review is provided below along with the 
recommended amount of reimbursement. 
 
SYNOPSIS: In accordance with the Public Infrastructure Reimbursement Program (Resolution 2012-09), this 
request is for the approval of an application to the City Council regarding the reimbursement for qualifying 
public infrastructure related to Atwood Subdivision. Approval of this application will allow the City and 
applicant to enter into a Public Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement as outlined in Res. 2012-09. 
 
Atwood Subdivision included the following improvements: Installation of ~280 linear feet of water line and one 
City water valve. 
 
Based on the construction estimated costs submitted by the applicant and based on staff review of 
these estimates, the preparation of an Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement and reimbursement 
of up to, but not exceeding, $2,527.68 is recommended. The following table summarizes the estimated 
expenses based on staff review of construction plans and cost estimates provided by the applicant: 
 
 
 
 
 



                                                                    ESTIMATED EXPENSES: 

 

At their regularly scheduled February 1, 2016 meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed this 
application and voted to recommend approval of a reimbursement to the applicant of up to $2,527.68. 
 

ITEM QUANTITY UNIT UNIT 

COST 

SUB 

TOTAL 

TAX 

(.0744) 

TOTAL (15%) 

Water Lines 280 LF $46.79 $13,101.20 $974.40 $14,075.60 $2,111.34 

Water Valve  1 EA $2,583.48 $2,583.48 $192.15 $2,775.63 $416.34 

Sewer Lines N/A       

Streets & Alleys N/A       

Curb & Gutter N/A       

Sidewalks N/A       

Multi-use Trails N/A       

Bike Lanes N/A       

Traffic Signals N/A       

Lift Stations N/A       

Transit Factions N/A       

Street Lighting in ROW N/A       

 N/A       

Total Cost Estimate        

Total Reimbursement 

Estimate (15% of Total 

Costs) 

   $15,684.68  $1,166.55 $16,851.23 $2,527.68 

BOARD/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE ACTION: 
    P&Z                             Lodgers Tax Board               Cemetery Board                         APPROVED 
    Museum Board            San Jose Board                    Water Board                               DISSAPPROVED 
    Library Board               N. Mesa Board                      __________ Committee 

Reviewed by  

City Administrator: ___________________________                Date: ____________________ 

ATTACHMENTS: Application materials, P & Z Minutes, Draft Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement  

jabarrick
Typewritten Text
/s/ Steve McCutcheon 			Feb. 17, 2016



INFRASTRUCTURE REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN THE CITY OF CARLSBAD AND  

LINDA KAY ATWOOD   
 FOR QUALIFYING PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE  

AT ATWOOD SUBDIVISION 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this           day of                   , 2016 
between the CITY OF CARLSBAD, New Mexico, a municipal corporation (hereinafter referred 
to as the "City"), and the LINDA KAY ATWOOD, (hereinafter referred to as the 
"Developer").   
 

WHEREAS, the Carlsbad City Council approved a 15% Infrastructure Reimbursement 
Program by Resolution 2012-09 (hereinafter referred to as the “Program”); and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Program, the City seeks to support local economic 
development by providing a fifteen percent reimbursement to qualifying developers for 
qualifying public infrastructure projects; and  
 

WHEREAS, Linda Kay Atwood wishes to develop a residential subdivision east of 
Hamilton Place to be known as Atwood Subdivision (hereinafter the “Development”); and  
 

WHEREAS, the Developer has submitted an Application for Infrastructure 
Reimbursement regarding certain qualifying public infrastructure associated with the 
Development as may be permitted by the Program; and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 1, 2016, the City’s Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed 

the application and recommended approval of a reimbursement of up to but not exceeding 
$2,527.68 for qualifying public infrastructure. 

   
NOW THEREFORE, in and for the consideration of the payments and agreements 



hereinafter mentioned, the parties agree as follows:   
 
1. The Developer will complete infrastructure improvements necessary to support the 

Development identified as Atwood Subdivision and desires to participate in the City’s 
15% Infrastructure Reimbursement Program, as approved by the City Council by 
Resolution 2012-09, as that Program may be amended from time to time.  All terms 
and conditions established by the Program shall govern this Agreement.   

 
2. That portion of the Development which would constitute qualifying public infrastructure 

pursuant to the Program is described on attached Exhibit “A” (hereinafter referred to as 
the “Qualifying Infrastructure”).  The estimated cost of each portion of Qualifying 
Infrastructure is also listed on Exhibit “A”.   

 
3. The Developer agrees that the Qualifying Infrastructure will be designed, constructed, 

installed, and completed in accordance with the following:   
 A. The Infrastructure Reimbursement Program Application submitted by the 

Developer and dated October 27, 2015 and stamped received by the City on October 
27, 2015 (hereinafter the “Application” and attached hereto as Exhibit “B”); 

 B. City Standards for Infrastructure and Utilities.   
 The Developer further states that all plans and specifications for the Qualifying 

Infrastructure were prepared by and bear the seal of a Professional Engineer, licensed 
in the State of New Mexico, and the plans and specifications were approved as may 
be required by the City of Carlsbad Planning and Zoning Commission and/or those 
City departments charged with the review and approval of such plans and 
specifications.   

 
4. On or before one year from the date of this agreement, (hereinafter the “Completion 

Date”), the Developer shall provide the City with:   
 A. A written certification of the Professional Engineer that the Qualifying 

Infrastructure has been completed according to the design drawings and specifications 
attached as part of Exhibit “B”; and  



 

 3 

 B. Certified copies of the design drawings and specifications for the Qualifying 
Infrastructure commonly known as the “as-built” documents.   

  
 The documents listed in 4(A) and (B), above, are hereinafter collectively referred to as 

the “Deliverables”.   Upon proper application to the City and for good cause shown, the 
City, at its sole discretion, may extend the Completion Date for all or a portion of the 
Qualifying Infrastructure for such period of time as the City, in its sole discretion, 
deems to be in the public interest.  No such extension, however, shall extend the 
Completion Date more than two (2) years beyond the date of the full execution of this 
Agreement by the parties.   

 
5. Within ten (10) business days of the City’s receipt of the Deliverables, the City and/or 

its agent shall review the Deliverables, inspect the Qualifying Infrastructure and:   
 A. Accept the Qualifying Infrastructure and then send written notice of its 

acceptance of the Qualifying Infrastructure to the Developer; or  
 B. If the City determines that all requirements, standards, and specifications 

applicable to the design, construction, installation and completion of the Qualifying 
Infrastructure have not been met, the City may reject all or a portion of the Qualifying 
Infrastructure.  In that event, the City shall then notify the Developer in writing of such 
determination.  That notice shall state the deficiencies found by the City.  The 
Developer shall then take action to correct all deficiencies.  When the deficiencies have 
been corrected, the Developer shall resubmit the Deliverables to the City.  The City 
shall then have ten (10) business days to review and accept or reject all or a portion 
of the Qualifying Infrastructure. This process and time periods described herein may 
continue until either the City has accepted all the Qualifying Infrastructure, or the City, 
in its sole discretion, chooses not to accept all or a portion of the Qualifying 
Infrastructure.  In no event, however, shall this process extend more than two (2) 
years beyond the date of execution of this Agreement by the Developer.  

 



 

 4 

6. For each portion of the Qualifying Infrastructure accepted by the City, the Developer 
shall submit all documentation and perform all acts necessary to dedicate it to the City 
of Carlsbad.   

 
7. For each portion of the Qualifying Infrastructure accepted by the City, the Developer 

shall submit to the City a written list of its actual costs related to the construction of 
the Qualifying Infrastructure and shall submit copies of final paid invoices as 
documentation of the actual costs.   

 
8. No later than thirty (30) days after the City has received the written list of actual costs 

and all copies of final paid invoices from the Developer, the City shall, for each portion 
of Qualifying Infrastructure accepted by the City:   

 A. Determine which costs are subject to reimbursement pursuant to the terms of 
the Program; and 

 B. Reimburse the Developer the lesser of either:  
i. Fifteen percent (15%) of the actual costs subject to reimbursement 
pursuant to the terms of the Program; or  
ii. Fifteen percent (15%) of the estimated costs as listed on Exhibit “A” 
subject to reimbursement pursuant to the terms of the Program.    

 
9. All notices permitted or required by the terms of this Agreement shall be in writing and 

deemed to have been duly given and delivered, if mailed, certified postage prepaid:   
 If to the City:     If to the Developer: 
  City of Carlsbad    Linda Kay Atwood 
  c/o City Administrator    
  P.O. Box 1569    502 Farris St. 
  Carlsbad, NM 88221-1569   Carlsbad, NM 88220 
 The parties shall notify each other in writing of any change in the above names or 

addresses.   



 

 5 

 
10. The Developer and its employees, officers, and agents are independent contractors and 

are not employees of the City.  The Developer and its employees, officers, and agents 
shall not accrue leave, retirement, insurance, bonding, use of City vehicles, or any 
other benefits afforded to the employees of the City of Carlsbad as a result of this 
Agreement.   

 
11. This Agreement incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understandings 

between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter hereof, and all such 
covenants, agreements, and understandings have been merged into this written 
Agreement.  No prior agreement or understanding, verbal or otherwise, of the parties or 
their agents shall be valid or enforceable unless embodied in this Agreement.  The 
parties expressly waive any other or further representations, warranties, or agreements 
not set forth in this document.  This Agreement cannot be changed except by a written 
instrument subsequently executed with the same formalities as with this Agreement.   

 
12. The parties agree this Agreement shall be construed and controlled by the laws of New 

Mexico.  The parties further agree that any legal action arising out of this Agreement 
shall be brought in the District Court of Eddy County, New Mexico for the Fifth Judicial 
District.  The parties expressly consent to both in person and subject matter jurisdiction 
of the Eddy County District Court and agree that venue shall properly lie in the Eddy 
County, New Mexico District Court.   

 
13. Any instrument or document made and attached to this Agreement or referred to by 

this Agreement shall constitute a part hereof as though set forth in full in the body of 
this Agreement, whether made a part hereof by reference or whether made a part 
hereof by attachment.   

 
CITY OF CARLSBAD: 



 

 6 

 
_______________________________ 

      DALE JANWAY, MAYOR  
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
CITY CLERK  
 

LINDA KAY ATWOOD 
 

_________________________________ 
LINDA KAY ATWOOD 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF EDDY  ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was signed and acknowledged before me this        day of 
_____________, 2016, by LINDA KAY ATWOOD, in her capacity as owner of ATWOOD 
SUBDIVISION.   
 
My Commission Expires: 
____________________    ______________________________ 

NOTARY PUBLIC 



 

 7 

REPLACE THIS PAGE WITH 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 
 
A LIST OF THE QUALIFYING 
INFRASTRUCTURE TO BE CONSTRUCTED 
BY APPLICANT AND FOR WHICH THE 15% 
REIMBURSEMENT IS BEING SOUGHT AND 
THE ESTIMATED AND/OR ACTUAL COSTS 
ASSOCIATED WITH EACH ITEM ON THE 
LIST  

 
For this Application the list will include: 

Water  



 

 8 

REPLACE THIS PAGE WITH 
EXHIBIT “B” 

 
 
INFRASTRUCTURE REIMBURSEMENT 
PROGRAM APPLICATION WITH ALL 
ATTACHMENTS   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

 

City of Carlsbad 

Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

February 1, 2016, at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting Held in the Council Chambers 

 

 

 
 



 

CITY OF CARLSBAD 

CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION  

 

Monday, February 1, 2016, at 5:00 PM 

Municipal Building 101 N. Halagueno Street 

City Council Chambers (Second Floor) 

1. Roll call of voting members and determination of quorum. 

2. Approval of Agenda.  

3. Approval of Amended Minutes from the Meeting held on December 7, 2015. 

4. Approval of Minutes from the Meeting held January 4, 2016. 

5. Consider an Appeal of a Zoning Interpretation issued by the Planning Department regarding a 

property located at 612 N. Guadalupe St., zoned (R-2) Residential District. 

6. Consider recommendation for an Infrastructure Reimbursement Application for Spring Hollow 

Subdivision Unit II Phase 1. 

 

7. Consider recommendation for an Infrastructure Reimbursement Application for Atwood 

Subdivision. 

 

8. Consider an Appeal (variance) from Section 3-56(b)(1) to allow a building height of 63’ rather 

than the maximum of 50’ in Carlsbad Airport Industrial Park, legally described as Carlsbad 

Industrial Air Park Replat P3 Unit 5, Tract 3-E.  

9. Consider a Conditional Use Permit for a bed and breakfast located at 814 N. Canal St., legally 

described as Lot 13, Block 108, North Carlsbad Subdivision.   

10. Consider recommendation for a Zone Change for an approximately 0.62 acre lot located at 814 N. 

Canal St., legally described as Lot 13, Block 108, North Carlsbad Subdivision.  

11. Report regarding Summary Review Subdivisions. 

12. Adjourn. 

 

 

 

If you require hearing interpreters, language interpreters, auxiliary aids in order to attend and participate in the above meeting, 

please contact the City Administrator's offices at (575) 887-1191 at least 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting. 



 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF CARLSBAD PLANNING & 

ZONING COMMISSION HELD IN THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING PLANNING ROOM, 101 N. 

HALAGUENO STREET, FEBRUARY 2, 2016, AT 5:00 P.M. 

 

VOTING MEMBERS PRESENT:    

 JAMES KNOTT  CHAIRPERSON  

  LASON BARNEY COMMISSIONER 

 

VOTING MEMBER ON PHONE: 

                          WANDA DURHAM COMMISSIONER 

      

VOTING MEMBERS ABSENT:    

 JAMES MCCORMICK COMMISSION SECRETARY  

  BRIGIDO GARCIA COMMISSIONER 

 

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS PRESENT:  

 JEFF PATTERSON PLANNING DIRECTOR 

 GEORGIA GOAD PLANNING DEPUTY DIRECTOR 

  SHERRI CHANDLER AIRPORT MANAGER 

 

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY PRESENT: 

 JENNIFER CAMPOS PLANNING, ENGINEERING 

 AND REGULATION DEPARTMENT 

 SECRETARY 

 

OTHERS PRESENT:   

 JOE HAYS  3908 PAT GARRETT 

 SHANNON SUMMERS CDOD 

 JAMES WATERS  1303 W. RIVERSIDE  

 KAY ATWOOD  502 FARRIS 

 JD VERNON  611 N. GUADALUPE  

 JOHN VERNON  611 N. GUADALUPE 

 JERRY SAMANIEGO 

 JONATHAN SAMANIEGO 

 GARTH GOODEY  805 TUSCAN LN. 

 JERRY ROGERS  209 GOIN HOME 

 DON OWEN  604 W. ORCHARD LN. 

 LINDA VERNON  611 N. GUADALUPE 

 ERNIE MARTINEZ 208 W. 1
ST

, STE.365, ROSWELL, NM   

 STUART KOGOD  814 N. CANAL ST. 

 J MICHAEL QUEEN 814 N. CANAL ST. 

 DANIEL JOHNSON 701 ALAMEDA 

 STEVE SHANOR  400 N. PENN. STE. 640, ROSWELL, NM  

 

    

Time Stamps and headings below correspond to recording of meeting and the recording is hereby made a 

part of the official record. 

 

0:00:00 Start Recording [5:05:18 PM] 

 

 

0:00:13 1. Roll call of voting members and determination of quorum.    



 

 

Roll was called, confirming the presence of a quorum of commission members.  Present – Mr. Knott, 

Mr. Barney, Ms. Durham (by phone); Absent – Mr. McCormick, Mr. Garcia.     

 

 

0:00:53 2. Approval of Agenda.  

 

Mr. Barney made a motion to approve the Agenda, and Ms. Durham seconded the motion.   The vote 

was as follows:  Yes – Mr. Knott, Ms. Durham, Mr. Barney; No – None; Abstained – None; Absent – 

Mr. McCormick, Mr. Garcia.  The motion carried.  

 

 

0:01:18 3. Approval of Amended Minutes from the Meeting held December 7, 2015. 

 

Mr. Patterson explained in the December 7, 2015 meeting minutes on item #4 that the motion to 

recommend approval of the zone change request was stated as approved, however it needed to be changed 

to state that the motion was denied. 

 

Mr. Barney made a motion to approve the Amended Minutes and Ms. Durham seconded the motion.    

The vote was as follows:  Yes – Mr. Knott, Ms. Durham, Mr. Barney; No – None; Abstained – None; 

Absent – Mr. McCormick, Mr. Garcia.  The motion carried.   

 

  

0:03:23 4. Approval of Minutes from the Meeting held January 4, 2016. 

 

Mr. Barney made a motion to approve the minutes, Ms. Durham seconded the motion.  The vote to 

recommend approval was as follows:  Yes – Mr. Knott, Ms. Durham, Mr. Barney; No – None; 

Abstained – None; Absent – Mr. McCormick, Mr. Garcia.  The motion carried. 

 

 

0:04:08 5.  Consider an Appeal of Zoning Interpretation issued by the Planning 

Department regarding a property located at 601 N. Guadalupe St., zoned (R-2) Residnetial District. 

  

Mr. Martinez mentioned that the address should be 612 N. Guadalupe not 601 N. Guadalupe.  Mr. 

Patterson explained on April 24, 2015, the City’s Planning Department issued a Zoning Interpretation 

Letter stating that under the Carlsbad Zoning Ordinance, in order for the appellant to open and operate a 

mobile home park, the owner of the property would need to ask for and have granted a Variance to reduce 

the required acreage for a mobile home park from a minimum of three (3) acres to +/-0.522 acres as well 

as asking for and having granted a Variance to reduce the required number of mobile home spaces, with 

24 spaces being the minimum. The owner would also need to obtain a Conditional Use Permit from the 

Planning and Zoning Commission for the park. The appellant filed an appeal January 4, 2016 that stated 

he wished to appeal the Zoning Interpretation.   Mr. Shanor stated that this matter was before the 

Planning and Zoning Commission on the Appeal filed by Jonathan Samaniego on January 4, 2016. The 

Appeal was of a Letter Determination dated April 24, 2015 by Planning Director, Jeff Patterson. City 

Ordinance, Section 56-150(c)(3)(a) provides that an Appeal must be filed with the City Administrator 

within fifteen (15) days after the date of the decision. Untimely Appeals shall not be considered. 

(Emphasis added). As such, the Planning and Zoning Commission should not consider this Appeal.  Mr. 

Martinez said his client did not receive a letter.   

 

Ms. Durham made a motion to not consider this Appeal, which would result in the denial of the Appeal, 

on the grounds that according to City Ordinance Sec. 56-150(c)(3)(a), this Appeal was untimely, being 

255 days after the issuance of the Zoning Determination. Mr. Barney seconded the motion.  The vote to 



 

to approve the motion was as follows:  Yes – Mr. Knott, Ms. Durham, Mr. Barney; No – None; 

Abstained – None; Absent – Mr. McCormick, Mr. Garcia.  The motion carried. 

  

 

 

 0:15:37 6.   Consider recommendation for an Infrastructure Reimbursement 

Application for Spring Hollow Subdivision Unit II Phase 1. 

 

Mr. Patterson explained that based on the construction estimated costs submitted by the applicant and 

based on staff review of these estimates, the preparation of an Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement 

and reimbursement of up to, but not exceeding $192,715.43 is recommended. 

 

Mr. Barney made a motion to approve the Infrastructure Reimbursement Application for Spring Hollow 

Subdivision Unit II Phase 1.  Ms. Durham seconded the motion.  The vote to recommend approval was 

as follows:  Yes – Mr. Knott, Ms. Durham, Mr. Barney; No – None; Abstained – None; Absent – Mr. 

McCormick, Mr. Garcia.  The motion carried.     

 

 

0:17:27 7.   Consider recommendation for an Infrastructure Reimbursement 

Application for Atwood Subdivision. 

 

Mr. Patterson explained based on the construction estimated costs submitted by the applicant and based 

on staff review of these estimates, the preparation of an Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement and 

reimbursement of up to, but not exceeding $2,527.68 is recommended. 

 

Ms. Durham made a motion to approve the Infrastructure Reimbursement Application for Atwood 

Subdivision.  Mr. Barney seconded the motion.  The vote was as follows:  Yes – Mr. Knott, Ms. 

Durham, Mr. Barney; No – None; Abstained – None; Absent – Mr. McCormick, Mr. Garcia.  The 

motion carried.   

 

 

0:18:47 8.   Consider an Appeal (variance) from Section 3-56(b)(1) to allow a building 

height of 63’ rather than the maximum of 50’ in Carlsbad Airport Industrial Park, legally 

described as Carlsbad Industrial Air Park Replat P3 Unit 5, Tract 3-E. 

 

Mr. Patterson explained that the applicant is requesting a variance from 50’ in height to 63’in height for 

concrete batch plant silos located at the subject site.  Planning Staff recommends denial based on the 

prohibition in the City’s Airport Industrial Park Ordinance. However, if the applicant provides the City 

with a waiver form from the FAA allowing a building to be erected at this height in proximity to the 

Airport runways, the Planning Dept. recommends approval with the condition that the applicant provide 

the City with a written approval letter issued by the FAA. Also, the height of the new structure needs to 

be verified by the applicant.  Ms. Chandler said she spoke with Mr. Waters about the needed FAA 

application. She said she could not recommend anything until FAA got back to Mr. Waters.  Mr. Waters 

said he spoke FAA and submitted an application to the FAA, and he expected at least a three week 

turnaround from FAA.  Ms. Chandler said she’s trying to keep airspace safe and couldn’t say why others 

construction projects didn’t have to go through this process.  Mr. Patterson said the board would need to 

vote according what the city’s ordinance read. 

 

Mr. Barney made a motion to approve the Appeal (variance) at the Carlsbad Airport Industrial Park for a 

structure to be built at a height of 63’ as opposed to the maximum height of 50’, with the condition that 

the applicant provide the City with a written approval letter from the FAA.  Ms. Durham seconded the 



 

motion.   The vote was as follows:  Yes – Mr. Knott, Ms. Durham, Mr. Barney; No – None; Abstained 

– None; Absent – Mr. McCormick, Mr. Garcia.  The motion carried.   

 

 

0:35:08 9.  Consider a Conditional Use Permit for a bed and breakfast located at 814 N. 

Canal St., legally described as Lot 13, Block 108, North Carlsbad Subdivision.  

  

Mr. Patterson explained that the Planning Department recommends approval of the Conditional Use 

Permit with the condition that the applicant meet all the requirements in the Ordinance for a bed and 

breakfast.  Mr. Stuart said this business would be good for Carlsbad and especially for visitors Carlsbad 

Caverns.  Mr. Barney asked if there has been any feedback on this application.  Mr. Patterson said 

“no”. 

Mr. Barney made a motion to approve the Conditional Use Permit.  Ms. Durham seconded the motion.  

The vote was as follows:  Yes – Mr. Knott, Ms. Durham, Mr. Barney; No – None; Abstained – None; 

Absent – Mr. McCormick, Mr. Garcia.  The motion carried.   

 

 

0:38:12 10.   Consider recommendation for a Zone Change for an approximately 0.62 

acre lot located at 814 N. Canal St., legally described as Lot 13, Block 108, North Carlsbad 

Subdivision. 

 

Mr. Patterson explained the applicant is requesting a Zoning Change from “R-2” Residential District to 

“C-2” Commercial District at the subject site, which is currently being used as a hostel. The western half 

of the property is zoned “C-2” Commercial while the eastern half is zoned “R-2” Residential. The owner 

wishes to change the eastern half of the property to C-2. The zoning of the abutting properties to the east 

is “R-2” Residential. The north, south and west is “C-2” Commercial. This will not create a spot zone. 
 
Ms. Durham made a motion to approve the Zone Change and Mr. Barney seconded the motion.  The 

vote was as follows:  Yes – Mr. Knott, Ms. Durham, Mr. Barney; No – None; Abstained – None; 

Absent – Mr. McCormick, Mr. Garcia.  The motion carried.   

 

 

0:41:33 11.   Report regarding Summary Review Subdivision. 

 

There was brief discussion of the plats signed by the commission designees during the previous month.   

 

 

0:41:51 15.   Adjourn. 

 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 

 

 

0:42:00 Stop Recording [5:42:00 PM]  

 

 

 

 

_____________________________________  ______________ 
      Chairman                     Date  



,. 

CITY OF CARLSBAD 
Planning, Engineering, andJlegulation Department 

114 S. Halagueno, Carlsbad, NM 88220 
Phone (575) 885-1185 

Fax (575) 628-8379 

Application for 
INFRASTRUCTURE REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM 

PROCESS FOR ACCEPTANCE AND REVIEW 

1. Applications for the Infrastructure Reimbursement Program are available in the Planning, 
Engineering, and Regulation Office. Applications are accepted concurrent with a preliminary 
plat, building permit or with construction plans associated with a subdivision platted prior to 
adoption of the Subdivision Ordinance. Construction cost estimates are required at the time of 
application. 

2. Applications are accepted on an ongoing basis. The minimum application packet submittal is 
one (1) copy of the completed application with original signatures and all required supporting 
documents. A letter of explanation or clarification shall also be provided. There is no fee for 
applying for this program. The preferred size for all documents is 11 "x 1 r. If larger-sized 
documents are provided, incl~de 15 copies. 

3. The Planning, Engineering, and Regulation Office will review the application for completeness. 
The application will be forwarded to the Development Committee for review prior to the City 
Council meeting. If deficiencies are noted, the Applicant will be advised and provided an 
opportunity to supplement the application. The application will not be considered by the City 
Council tmtil it is complete. 

4. If approved, the City will execute an Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement, which details 
additional program requirements. Prior to reimbursement, the actual construction costs are 
required to be submitted concurrent with a final plat and as-built drawings and/or a certificate of 
occupancy. 

5. Funding for this program varies from year to year. Reimbursement is on a first come first served 
basis. 

09/11 11 

Page 1 of7 



City of Carlsbad, New Mexico 
Infrastructure Reimbursement Program 

Application 
& Regulation Dcp,1rtme~t _ ~ __ 1 

APPLICATION DATE: Joj:J 7/J~ 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: The purpose of this program is to support economic development within 
the City by providing private property owners and developers a 15% reimbursement of the total on-site 
(within the platted boundaries) and off-site (outside of the platted boundaries) qualifying public 
infrastructure costs associated with an approved development Qualifying Public Infrastructure includes: 
water lines, sewer lines, lift stations, streets and alleys, street lighting in the right-of-way, sidewalks, 
curb and gutter, multi-use trails, bike lanes, traffic signals, and transit facilities. Engineering costs, 
surveying, site prep, right-of-way and easement acquisition, labor, permitting and consulting fees are not 
eligible for reimbursement Approval of an application does not guarantee approval of a 
reimbursement. An approved application allows the applicant to proceed with the execution of an 
Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement. Once the requirements specified in the Infrastructure 
Reimbursement Agreement are fulfilled, reimbursement •vill be granted 

APPLICANT INFORMATION: 
L tlJfJ 1J ~ A-TL£1 o o "1J 

Name (Iiioperty ow; dR developer) /} Oo 
. 5 o ~ F 8f R 1 s t.iARI.SA-A 1J IV M d.d:;tdlJ 

A~ess City State Zip Code 

~25-g~!;---35 (,I Lll. Vu tn a<E@ Glhft-JL. CDfh 
Phone Email 

PROPERTY INFORMATION: 
B-rw ov]) Sf..19,wv l5JDU 

Phase Name zr:division OR project) p Unit 
-Am 1L, o v LM£ 

Location/Cross Streets 

GENERAL PROGRAM CRITERIA AND REQUIREMENTS: 
I. Property and all qualifying public infrastructure must be located within the City Limits. 
2. The application must be completed and approved by the City Council. 
3. The application must be submitted concurrent with a preliminary plat, building permit or with 

construction plans associated with a subdivision platted prior to adoption of the Subdivision 
Ordinance. 

4. Subdivision of land must be in accordance with the City's Subdivision Regulations (Chapter 47 
et. seq.), as amended, including: 

a. Sketch Plan showing each phase of development 
b. Preliminary Plat(s) for each phase of development 
c. Final Plat(s) for each phase of development with dedication of infrastructure noted on the 

plat 
cL Infrastructure that varies from the standard shall not qualify for reimbursement. 

5. Approved subdivisions must be recorded and filed with the County Clerk. 

Page 2 of7 



6. An Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement must be executed by the City and applicant prior to 
reimbursement. 

7. Reimbursement shall not exceed usual and customary infrastructure costs. 
8. Reimbursement shall not be made for items installed prior to application date. 
9. Reimbursement shall be paid upon total construction completion. Progress billing will not be 

accepted. Final invoices, with proof of payment (cancelled checks, evidence of wire transfer), are 
required. 

10. Reimbursement will be made to the applicant only. No payment will be made to third parties. 
11. Construction of qualifying public infrastructure must begin within 60-days of preliminary plat 

approval and be completed prior to approval of a final plat (if self financed) or within one year of 
fmal plat approval (if fmanced through a letter of credit). 

12. Greater priority will be given to projects that further City plans and policies, focus on infill 
and/or provide affordable housing (as determined by the NM Mortgage Finance Authority). 

ADDITIONAL REQUIRED INFORMATION: 
Please attach the following information organized in the order listed below: 

1. List of board of directors, executive directors, contractors and subcontractors that have a 
fmancial interest in the development or are affiliated with, or have a immediate family member 
(mother, father, sister, brother, grandmother, grandfather) affiliated with, the City of Carlsbad; 
and 

2. Federal tax identification number, State tax identification number, and City business registration 
number; and 

3. List any assistance requested from Federal, State or County governments, if any. Include any 
direct funding, land, fee and/or permit waivers; and 

4. A complete and specific description of the proposed development and infrastructure including, 
but not limited to: 

a. Subdivision plats (sketch, preliminary, final) 
b. Construction drawings 
c. Utility requirements, including but not limited to electric, gas, and water 
d. Solid and liquid waste disposal requirements 
e. Infrastructure requirements 
f. Regulatory compliance requirements (environmental assessments, historic 

preservation documents) 
g. As-built construction drawings (at construction completion); and 

5. A description of the proposed infrastructures long term benefit to the City; and 
6. Any other information necessary for the City to make a determination regarding the application 

for reimbursement. 
7. The table on page 4 of this application must be completed. 

Page 3 of7 



DESCRIPTION OF QUALIFYING INFRASTRUCTURE AND ESTIMATED COSTS (including taxes) 
USE THIS FORM (attach supporting documentation, as necessary): 

ITEM QUANTITY UNIT 
UNIT 

TAX TOTAL 
.COST Jd 

Water Lines ~~ I/-. :PLjt, 7CJ CJ7L/. '17 w I 1. 1J 'Jl_f. ll 7 
Sewer Lines (] 
Streets & Alleys 
Curb & Gutter 
Sidewalks 
Multi-Use Trails 
Bike Lanes 
Traffic Signals 
Lift Stations 
Transit Facilities 
Street Lighting in R-0-W 
(f~. uJcitUt 1/o~- J £"It ~:)5 ~Jqg I$ :J. 5g3 'IR 

a Total Cost Estimate ~(/) {c_;g, 96 
**Total Reimbursement 

, 

Estimate (15% of Total '¢jL '-/9f, ~v Costs) 

Page 4 of7 



DESCRIPTION OF QUALIFYING INFRASTRUCTURE AND ACTUAL COSTS (including taxes) 
USE THIS FORM (attach supporting documentation, as necessary): 

ITEM QUANTITY UNIT 
UNIT 

TAX TOTAL 
COST 

Water Lines ~ $(-{) rT ~1~ 7Cj 9 7i, 'll ~1_() -;s; 'f 7 
Sewer Lines 

, 

Streets & Alleys 
Curb & Gutter 
Sidewalks 
Multi-Use Trails 
Bike Lanes 
Traffic Signals 
Lift Stations 
Transit Facilities 
Street Lighting in R-0-W 

1J £ w {.' 't<Jt:~f f'r /11v e t] {/Itt.. IJ F I ;:fl ~ S83 'IK ~j 5f_l//f 
Total Cost 

, 
~ ,LJ·, ~ ~p, 9-s 

**Actual Reimbursement 
~.LJ7f, ~ (15% of Total Costs) 

Page5of7 



CHECKLIST FOR INFRASTRUCTURE REIMBURSEMENT 
FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

GENERAL PROGRAM CRITERIA AND REQUIREMENTS: 

D Property and all qualifying public infrastructure is located within the City Limits. 
D Application is complete and estimates approved by the City Council. 
D The application was submitted concurrent with: 

o Preliminary plat 
o Building permit 
o Construction plans (because the subdivision was platted prior to adoption of the 

Subdivision Ordinance) 
D Subdivision is in accordance with the City's Subdivision Regulations (Chapter 47 et. seq.), as 

amended, including: 
o Sketch Plan showing each phase of development 
o Preliminary Plat(s) for each phase of development 
o Final Plat( s) for each phase of development with dedication of infrastructure noted on the 

plat 
D Variances were not granted for this project. 
D Approved subdivision was recorded with the County Clerk. 
D Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement was executed by the City and applicant. 
D Requirements of the Reimbursement Agreement were complied with. 
D Actual costs do not exceed usual and customary infrastructure costs. 
D Items were not installed prior to application date. 
D Final invoices, with proof of payment (cancelled checks, evidence of wire transfer), are 

provided. 
D Third party payment is not requested. 
D Construction of qualifying public infrastructure began within 60-days of preliminary plat 

approval 
D Construction of qualifying public infrastructure was completed prior to approval of a fmal plat (if 

self fmanced) or within one year of fmal plat approval (if financed through a letter of credit). 
D This project: 

o Furthered City plans and policies 
o Focused on infill 
o Provide affordable housing (as determined by the NM Mortgage Finance Authority). 

The following ADDITIONAL REQUIRED INFORMATION was provided: 

0 List of board of directors, executive directors, contractors and subcontractors that have a 
fmancial interest in the development or are affiliated with, or have a immediate family member 
(mother, father, sister, brother, grandmother, grandfather) affiliated with, the City of Carlsbad 

D Federal tax identification number 
D State tax identification number 
D City business registration number 
D Funding sources for the proposed development project including assistance being requested of, 

or provided by, the City or other governmental entity (e.g. land, fee waivers, direct funding, etc.) 

Page 6 of7 



D A complete and specific description of the proposed development and infrastructure including, 
but not limited to: 

o Subdivision plats (sketch, preliminary, final) 
o Construction drawings 
o Utility requirements, including but not limited to electric, gas, and water 
o Solid and liquid waste disposal requirements 
o Infrastructure requirements 
o Regulatory compliance requirements (environmental assessments, historic preservation 

documents) 
o As-built construction drawings (at construction completion) 

D A description of the proposed infrastructures long term benefit to the City 
D Any other information necessary for the City to make a determination regarding the application 

for reimbursement 
D The tables on page 5 and 6 are complete 

Page 7 of 7 



. lAt/08/201)/iHU 02:35 FN FAX Ho . P. 001/0JI 

-· 
~ 

City of Carlsbad 

Estimate P.O. Box 1569 
Carlsbad, NM 88220 
(575)887 -1 191 ext. 7973 
Fax:C575l885-0385 

Job Description 

Estimated Coat to Install New &'" Line @ Intersection of Hamilton and Hamilton Pl. 
For Trent Atwood Prepared 118/15 

Itemized Statement 

LABOR 
~ 

Water Operators -14 hr. @ $29.36/hr. 
Water Operators - 14 hr. @ $29.36/hr. 
Heavy Equipment Operator 2 - 14 hr. @ $25.32 

EQUIPMENT 
. ~ 

1 - 3/4Ton Service Truck -14 hrs. @ $7.70/hr. 
1 - Backhoe- 14 hr. @39.60/hr. 

MATERIALS FOR 6'" LINE EXTENSION 
1· 20'- 6" C·900 Pipe @ 4.88/ft. 

1 - 6" MJ Gate Valve 

1 - Shorty Valve Can . . 
22'- Blue Tracer Wire@ .16/ft. 

~ 

Sub-Total 
FEES 

TOTAL 

Thll is only a minimum astimate. It appliea only to the job desalbed aboVe. ThiJ est! mat. does not 
include additional materials or labor that may be ..:qulracl due te unfnr-n problems, such as extended 

to the Director of Finance prior to beginning the WOI1t. At.1he oompletion of the Job, a statement or actual cost 
will be prepart<l and a refund or addt iOnal eoet will be determined at that time. I have read end undemend 

the a ve $ta lng to all tennc. __.----.. 

~ -

$411 .04 
$411.04 
$354.48 

$1 07.80 
~ 

$554.40 
~ 

$97.20 
~ 

$600.00 
$44.00 

$3.52 
$2,583.48 

$2,583.48 



f'I'O"rt' '1 ft'r r.A .. AUUL h"Cl'* I 

Sequence:181615310 Date:10/05/2015 ImgFile:cpst017 Account:40020665 Amount:$14,015.70 Serial:6776 

• ·~1 7 ·• . . . .. b l ~ ..: ·-· 

- = 



vJayne brazeal construction and pluming 
pobox 1838 
carlsbad, NM 88221 

Bill To 
Kay Attwood 
Carlsbad NM 88220 

P.O.# 
Terms 

Description 

bid job Labor and Pipe dig ditch and compact to specs 
water taps and 1• pipe HD Supply 
s· gate valvue 2 mega lugs 6 meter box 
soil compaction test bottom of ditch to final grade 

dJi- ~ 77(p 

thanks for your business 

way11e btazeal construction and pluming 

Date 9/23/2015 

Invoice # 370 

Ship To 

Ship Date 
Due Date 
Other 

9/23/2015 

9/23/2015 

Amount 

575 236 6135 
Fax 575 236 6135 

Subtotal 

Sales Tax (7 .43~) 

Total 

Payments /Credits 

Balance Due 

9,500.00T 
1,254.25T 
1,146.53T 
1,200.45T 

$13,101.23 

$974.47 

$14,075.70 

$0.00 

$14,075.70 

, 



·,; 

i 

MIKE ATWOOD 
KAY ATWOOD l 
!i02 EAST FARR:S • 505--885-35 
CARLSBAD, NM 8822,0 . :· . 

Sequence:705317744 Date:01/16/2015 ImgPile:cince001 Account:40020665 Amount:$2,583.48 Serial:6770 

......... • ..... .., r· 
u l,.l .Z..'Io&·' .J • ..J 



Number of Cases 
Warrants Outstanding 
Amount of Fines 
Cases on Appeal 

Summary for the Month of 
Total Fines 
Total Prevention Fees 
Total Lab Fees 
Total Correction Fees 
Total Automation Fees 
Judicial Fees 
Notary Fees 
Victim Restitution 
TOTAL 

CARLSBAD MUNICIPAL COURT 
CITY OF CARLSBAD 
MONTHLY REPORT 

JANUARY 2016 

FINES 

I 194 
3272 

$53.890.00 
0 

JANUARY 2016 
$33,671.50 
$ 476.00 
$ 471 .00 
$ 13.333.00 
$ 3,849.50 
$ 1.921.00 
$ 3.00 
$ 165.00 
$53 890.00 

TOTAL FINES WORKED OUT THROUGH COMMUNITY SERVICE - $ 358.00 

cc: Chief 
City Administrator 
Finance Department ail4.:M~ 

Municipal Judge 



MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 
Planning, Engineering, & Regulation Department 

January 2016 

1. Business Activity: 

New Businesses: 31 

2. Miscellaneous Permits: 

Dances: 0 

3. Building Permits & Inspections: 

Permits Issued: 162 

56-Building Permits 

42-Plumbing!Mechanical 

64- Electrical Permits 

4. Code Enforcement 

ACTIVITY SUMMARY 

Temporary Businesses: 7 

Parades: 0 

Permit Revenue: $12,443.50 

Business Renewals: 520 

Other: 0 

inspections Completed: 195 

42- Building 

62- Plumbing/Mechanical 

91- Electrical 

New Cases-333 (includes door hangars&, letters for Weed Blitz/56 Code Enforcement files) 

Closed cases-8 

5. Planning & Engineering activities for the month of January 2015: 

NEW 

• Six Planning & Zoning Applications received for February meeting 
• Long-Range Roadway Plan- 99% Complete 
• Asset Management Plan 60% Complete 
• Housing Plan Update- Housing Plan Approved 
• Ordinances Being Reviewed for Updates 

ONGOING 
• Infrastructure Mapping (GIS) 
• Development Review 
• Subdivision Review and Approvals 
• Leased Properties Inspections 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
Meets the first Monday of each month at 5 p.m. in the City Hall Planning Room. 



Director:  Steve Hendley 

MONTHLY REPORT 
 
 

January 2016 

TOTAL PATRONS SERVED: 
 

26,254 

Digitally signed by 
Steve Hendley 
DN: cn=Steve Hendley, 
o=City of Carlsbad, 
ou=Facility Maintence, 
email=sghendley@city
ofcarlsbadnm.com, 
c=US 
Date: 2016.02.15 
09:46:11 -07'00'



Monthly Report-January 2016 

Department-Airport 

Attendance to Cavern City Airport: 1325 

Projects/Maintenance/F.A.A. Compliance  
Daylight and night-time daily inspections-perimeter check of all gates and intrusion of 
animals. 

OK 

Mowing airfield, weed-eating vegetation on taxiways and runways, around lights, signs, 
and buildings. Raking around lights where small animals are burrowing. Tumbleweed 
removal against perimeter fence. Filling in Fox holes with rocks and dirt. 

OK 

Continuing with F.A.A. Part 139 training. OK 
Weekly maintenance including; cleaning of terminal, fueling and checking fluids on 
vehicles and equipment, running and servicing generators. 

OK 

Communications-NOTAM’s issued and monitoring aviation radio. OK 
Weekly cleaning of the Terminal building. OK 
As ramp lighting and terminal outside lighting is going out we have been replacing this fixture with 
L.E.D. lighting. We will get more illumination plus a longer lifetime.

OK 

Weekly safety huddles. OK 

F.O.D. removal off of runways, taxiways and ramp. OK 
 

Boutique Airlines Landing Report  
Here's the traffic report for Boutique Air at CNM for January 2016:

Flights 
Scheduled

Flights 
Flown

Cancelled 
Weather

Cancelled 
other

Revenue 
Passengers

January 20161/1 to 1/31

Enplaned CNMABQ 26 26 0 0 102

Deplaned CNMABQ 26 26 0 0 85

Enplaned CNMDFW 26 26 0 0 114

Deplaned CNMDFW 26 26 0 0 117

 

Significant Weather Report  
None  
 

Comments
Roofing project is near completion. They are near the end of replacing the Fascia, 



Soffit and Lighting. Work is still being done to the HVAC system.  
The Fencing projects are still in progress. 
 



MONTHLY WORK REPORT
 

 

DEPARTMENT: GOLF COURSE
 

MONTH:JANUARY
 

NO. OF EMPLOYEES: 4 FULL TIME
 

NO. OF DAYS IN MONTH: 31
 

HOLIDAYS THIS MONTH: 2
 

NO. OF WORK DAYS THIS MONTH: 19
 

ROUNDS PLAYED: JANUARY 2016: 1,728 UP 608 OVER JANUARY 2015  
TOTAL ROUND FISCAL YEAR 2015/2016: 18,235 DOWN 454 OVER FY2014/2015 

 
ROUTINE TASKS NON-ROUTINE TASKS

TASK HOURS TASK HOURS
Mowing Fairways 8 Clear Snow 11
Mowing Greens 16 Gophenator 51.5

Mowing Tees 18 Fencing on Muscatel 30.5
Mowing Fringes 2 Picking up Lights on the River 8
Mowing Roughs -

Setting Up 14

Mower Maint. and Minor Repair 57
Watering Trees -

Irrigation System Maintenance 198
Manual Watering 6.25

Shop Housekeeping 12  
Hand Mowing and Trimming 30  

Roll Greens 24  
Blow debris off greens, pick up

branches
6  

Clean bathrooms, empty trash,
move tee markers, fill water

cans, check ball washers

21  

  
TOTAL HOURS SPENT ON

ROUTINE TASKS
412.25 TOTAL HOURS SPENT ON NON-

ROUTINE TASKS
101

   
TOTAL GOLF COURSE

HOURS
513.25   

 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by:
 

Kyle Boatman, Golf Course Superintendent
 
 
 
 
 



Department: Beautification 

No. of Events: 2 

Monthly Report 
For 

January 2016 

No. of Incidents/Complaints: 0 

Date of Next Board Meeting: February 18, 2016 

Activities I Projects I Attendance: 

Awarded First American Bank- Business of the Month-January 2016 

Attended FAA V meeting- Jan 11 , 2016 

Attended Chamber of Commerce Tourism Meeting-Jan. 12, 2016 

Attended Arbor Day Tree Board Meeting- Jan. 19, 2016 (No quorum) 

Attended Board of Solid Waste Commissioners meeting- Jan. 20, 2016 

Attended Homeless meeting- Jan. 21 , 2016 

4 Community Service Workers assisted Keep Carlsbad Beautiful for cleanup in various areas including 
MLK Parade Route prep and MLK Park: 
(55 hours total trash pickup/ 18 bags of trash collected = 0.12 tons trash collected) 

Attended Carlsbad MainStreet meeting- Jan 25, 2016 

Participated in extended MainStreet outreach meeting- Jan. 26, 2016 

Attended Eddy County OWl Program meeting- Jan. 26, 2016 

18 Villa De Esperanza individuals completed 1 hour of community service each cleaning Davis Park located 
on Kircher St. - Jan. 29, 2016 

(18 hours total trash pickup/9 bags of trash collected= 0.06 tons trash collected) 

Attended Homeless meeting- Jan. 29, 2016 

Board I Committee Reports or Directives: N/A 

I Problem I Complaint Resolution: N/A 

Signed:~ • ~~ 
Mary Garwood, Beautification/Special Events Coordinator 



January 2016 Financial Report 

Walter Gerrells PAC 

January events were cancelled due to the roof collapse at the WGPAC. We have been making 

arrangements with customers to re-schedule the events that are not time sensitive. We are receiving 

a tremendous amount of calls for new rentals as well. We are advising clients that we will speak with 

them towards the end of February (or sooner if repairs to the Annex electrical is completed) and get 

them on the calendar. 

Once a date for the Annex power has been determined, we should be able to book out fairly quickly. 

We have planned an advertising campaign to let the community know when we will be operational 

and we have spoken to all the news outlets who have agreed to cover the re-launch of the Annex. We 

want to make the transition back as smooth for everyone as possible. 

Upcoming events are TBD at this point, but we have high hopes it will be operational by March, 2016. 



MONTHLY REPORT
FOR  JANUARY  2016 

Department: Carlsbad Department of Sports and Recreation  
Riverwalk Recreation Complex

No. of Rental Events:               18 
No. of Incidents/Complaints:  40          
   
Activities No. of Events No. of Patrons Total
Moms support group 1 25 25
Crafts 2 8 16
Relay for life Meeting 2 25 50
Karate Class 8 5 40
Tango Dance Lesson 4 1 4
Basketball 59 10 590
Fitness Class 20 20 400
Coffee Drinkers 20 12 240
Hockey Park 3 8 24
Church Meeting 2 20 40
Skate Park 30 120 3,600
Racquet Ball Players 30 28 840
Pickle Ball 12 8 96
NA Meeting 8 10 80
LULAC 1 4 4
Cize Class 12 4 48
Walk-In  Attendance 30 300 9,000
Rentals:
Birthday Parties 12 60 720
Baby Shower 6 60 360
Attendance for the month was 30 16,177
Average for the day was 539

Problem/Complaint Resolution: Complaints on sewer gas smell in building/ 
Reported Issue
                                    
Minutes Attached: Yes   ___   No _X__ 

Signed:____________________________ 



CEMETERY MONTHLY REPORT 
January, 2016

          Carlsbad          Santa   Sunset              
                                               Cemetery       Catarina       Gardens            Total 
Number of Interments: 18 3 3 24

Cremations
(Columbaria, included)

4 (0) 1 1 6(0)

Babyland 0 0 0 0

Indigent 0 0 0 0

Saturday 3 0 1 4

Double Depth 0 0 0 0

SUNDAY/Holiday 0 0 0 0

Disinterment: 0 0 0 0

Sale of Lots:
(Columbaria, included)

8 0 0 8 (0)

On Payment Plan: 0 0 0 0

Pre-Need:
(Columbaria, included) 3 (0) 0 0 3 (0)

Meetings: 1 1

Monument Permits: 4(0) 1 1 6

Complaint/Incident 
Reports:

0 0 0 0

Vandalism

Damaged Stone

Sunken Grave

Sunken Marker

Theft

Flowers

Maintenance

Other 1 1

Correspondence:



MONTHLY WORK REPORT 

Week of January 1st through January 8th  
 Employees were off on the 1st in observance of New Year’s Day. Three employees built and installed new 
shelving in silo #3 for irrigation fittings and parts. Three employees arranged irrigation fitting, parts, & 
supplies in silo #3. One employee cleaned the press boxes at baseball, soccer office, and the sports complex 
office. Two employees cleaned well house #1 & #2. Two employees cleaned and rearranged silo #1 and 
silo #2.  Four employees removed snow from athletic fields & sidewalks. One employee replaced missing 
or broken acoustic ceiling tiles in concession buildings. 

Week of January 11th through 15th

One employee prepped and painted the metal doors of the baseball concession stand. Four employees laid-
out & marked apron areas and warning tracks on Jr/Sr fields. Four employees sod cut and removed excess 
sod from Jr/Sr fields aprons and warning tracks. One employee removed tumbleweeds throughout the 
facility. Two employees enlarged tree wells and trimmed trees in soccer. Two employees added and leveled 
new infield mix on the Jr/Sr infields and warning tracks.

Week of January 18th through 22nd

Employees were off on the 18th in observance of Martin Luther King Day. One employee mowed the 
soccer fields. Two employees repaired tree wells and trimmed trees in soccer.  Two employees added and 
leveled new infield mix on the Jr/Sr infields and warning tracks. Three employees removed old PVC pipe, 
construction debris, and litter from the south open areas. Two employees replaced a gate valve on soccer 
field 5. Two employees dragged and leveled infields of baseball and softball for practices. One employee 
prepped and painted the metal doors of the baseball concession stand. 

Week of January 25th through 29th  
Three employees added & leveled new infield mix on the Jr/Sr infields & warning tracks. Two employees 
continued enlarging tree wells in the soccer area.  Four employees prepared the soccer area for the 3v3 Live 
Soccer Tournament.  Two employees added and leveled new infield mix on baseball field 3. One employee 
dragged and leveled the infields of baseball and softball for practices. Two employees re-located irrigation 
bubblers on the new trees by baseball #7. Two employees replaced a broken irrigation head in baseball 
common area.  One employee performed tumbleweed clean up and trimmed front perimeter fences. Two 
employees performed litter control throughout facility and ARC litter control.  

________________________________________
John Lowe, Sports Superintendent 

DEPARTMENT: 
Sports Complex

BFYSC MONTH:
January 2016

NO. OF EMPLOYEES:
5

NO. OF DAYS IN THE 
MONTH:
31

HOLIDAYS THIS MONTH:
2

Approx Attendance
7,000 NO. OF WORK DAYS 

THIS MONTH:
19



CITY OF CARLSBAD

INTER-OFFICE MEMORANDUM
Dale Janway, Mayor Steve McCutcheon City Administrator

February 18. 2016

TO: Council Members

FROM: Mayor Janway

RE: Board, Commission and Committee Appointments

Subject to the approval of the Governing Body, I would like to appoint the following:

Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 

Jim Grantner Remainder of 4 year term

Christy Thomas Remainder of 4 year term 

Carlsbad Senior Recreation Center Advisory Board at North Mesa Center

Ysdrio Molinar Remainder of 4 year term 

 

Thank you.

DJ/cm



CITY OF CARLSBAD 

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 

ounc1 ee mg a e: C "I M f D t 2/23/16 
Department: Planning, Engineering By: Georgia Goad, Deputy Planning DATE: 1/11/16 
and Regulation Director 

SUBJECT: 2016 Community Development Block Grant Application- Project Selection 

BACKGROUND, ANALYSIS AND IMPACT (Safety and Welfare/Financial/Personnel/Infrastructure/etc.): 

During the month of January, public hearings were held at the San Jose Senior Center and the Library Annex to 
solicit project ideas from Carlsbad residents. The following projects were suggested by the public for possible 
funding from the State of New Mexico Community Development Block Grant Program: 

Homeless Emergency Shelter 
San Jose Senior Center: remodel or rebuild 

The project that is selected must benefit principally low and moderate income families, aid in the prevention or 
elimination of slum and blight, and/or "meet other community development needs of recent origin having a 
particular urgency because existing conditions pose a serious and immediate threat to the health and welfare of 
the community where other financial resources are not available to meet such needs". 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: Based on the criteria of the grant application and from those present 
at public hearings, the homeless shelter was recognized as the most needed project in the community. 

Staff recommends selection of the homeless shelter as the project for the 2016 CDBG Application. 

BOARD/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE ACTION: 

0 P&Z D Lodgers Tax Board D Cemetery Board } 0 APPROVED 
0 Museum Board D San Jose Board 0 Water Board } 
0 Library Board 0 N. Mesa Board 0 Committee } 0 DISAPPROVED 

Reviewed by 
City Administrator Date: 

ATTACHMENT(S): CDBG Information Sheet 

ABM Form 2012 
2/17/2016 



Resolution No. ------

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO, 
AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A NEW MEXICO COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM APPLICATION TO THE 
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION/LOCAL GOVERNMENT; 
AND AUTHORIZING MAYOR DALE JANWAY TO ACT AS THE CITY OF 
CARLSBAD'S CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE IN ALL MATTERS PERTAINING TO THE CITY OF 
CARLSBAD'S PARTICIPATION IN THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 
GRANT PROGRAM. 

WHEREAS, the need exists within the City of Carlsbad_ for neighborhood improvement 
projects in several low and moderate income neighborhoods, and the City of Carlsbad desires to 
apply to the Housing and Urban Development's Community Development Block Grant Program 

to obtain funding for neighborhood improvement projects; and 

WHEREAS, the Carlsbad City Council has held two public hearings for public input and 
comment on January 6 & 7, 2016 and January 22, 2016 during the 2016 application process; and 

WHEREAS, the Carlsbad City Council finds that there is a significant need to undertake 
the planning, design and construction of an Emergency/Homeless Shelter to provide adequate 

services to the community; and 

WHEREAS, the Carlsbad City Council determines that the Emergency Homeless Shelter 

project meets the requirements of the Community Development Block Grant Program. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO, that 

1. The City of Carlsbad is hereby authorized to prepare and submit a Community 
Development Block Grant application to the New Mexico Department of Finance and 
Administration/Local Government Division for a Homeless Shelter~ 

2. That the Carlsbad City Council directs and designates Mayor Dale Janway as the City 
of Carlsbad's Chief Executive Officer and Authorized Representative to act in all 
matters in connection with this application and the City of Carlsbad's participation in 
the New Mexico Community Development Block Grant Program. 

3. The City of Carlsbad's officials and staff are directed to do any and all acts necessary 
to cany out the intent of the Resolution. 



4. That the full application amount be for $500,000.00 of grant funds and Phased be for 
$0.00 for the Emergency Homeless Project; 

5. That it further be stated that the City of Carlsbad is committing $50,000.00 from its 
General fund as a cash contribution toward the 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 23~day of February 2016. 

Mayor Dale Janway 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk, Annette Barrick 



CDBG PUBLIC HEARING INFORMATION 

Program Objectives 

Benefit principally low and moderate income families. 

Aid in the prevention of slum or blight. 

Meet urgent community development needs where an existing condition poses a threat to the 
health and welfare of the community and other financial resources are not available. 

Eligible Applicants 

All counties/incorporated municipalities except the cities of Albuquerque, Las Cruces, Santa Fe, 
Farmington, and Rio Rancho. 

Water and mutual domestic associations may apply for a planning grant through their county; 
sanitation districts, public nonprofit groups, et c. cannot apply directly for assistance but may 
apply through an eligible municipality or county. 

Indian Pueblos and tribes receive funding directly from HUD. 

Eligible Activities/Categories 

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE: Water and sewer systems; street improvements consisting of 
roads, streets, curbs, gutter, sidewalks, traffic control devices; municipal utilities. 

HOUSING: Real property acquisition; rehabilitation; clearance; provision of public facilities to 
increase housing opportunities; code enforcement; historic preservation activities; a maximum 
of $65,000 in CDBG funds per home can be used on rehab/repair activities. 

PUBLIC SERVICE CAPITAL OUTLAY: Community centers; senior citizen centers; community 
facilities designed to provide health, social, recreational and other services to residents. 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT: Assists communities in creating or retaining jobs for low and 
moderate income persons; creation or retention of businesses owned by community residents. 

EMERGENCY: Addresses life threatening situations resulting from disasters or threats to health 
and safety; must have appropriate state agency concurrence; local resources must be non
existent or unavailable. 

PLANNING: Grant assistance must be used for a comprehensive plan if there has not been a 
current or updated plan within the last five years; feasibility studies; base mapping, aerial 
photography, GIS systems; development of codes and ordinances; limit of $50,000. 

COLON/AS: Communities must be within 150 miles of the U.S.- Mexico border and be 
designated by the county or municipality where it is located. The criteria necessary to qualify 
are lack of potable water supply, inadequate sewage system and lack of decent, safe, and 
sanitary housing. 



Ineligible Activities 

City halls or county courthouses; general operation and maintenance expenses of public 
facilities; ( the only exception is if Courthouses are not ADA compliant) 
housing allowance payments and mortgage subsidies; expenditures for political purposes; costs 
involved in preparing applications and securing funding. 

Program Requirements 

Applicants must conduct at least one public hearing prior to selecting a project to advise citizens 
of estimated CDBG funds available; types of projects available; obtain recommendations from 
citizens regarding community development and housing needs. A minimum of three hearings is 
recommended. 

Citizen participation must be encouraged with emphasis on low and moderate income persons 
by publishing public hearing notices in English and Spanish, and using other means such as 
media or posting flyers in an effort to reach the public. 

Recommendations from the public are to be considered and the project is selected at an official 
regularly scheduled meeting of the governing body. 

Each CDBG application must address at least one of the three national objectives: 1) activities 
must benefit low and moderate income persons 2) prevention of slum and blight 3) must meet 
urgent or life threatening community development need. 

Application Requirements 

Application requests are limited to $500,000 {Planning grants- $50,000). You may also submit a 
phased request. 

Applicant must meet threshold requirements: Any grantee with one or more active grants in 
the infrastructure, public service, capital outlay categories, and Colonias projects, cannot apply 
for additional funding until the current project is fully closed. 

Rural applicants {3,000 or less population) must provide a minimum 5% cash match; Non-Rural 
applicants must provide a 10% cash match. 

Applicants may request a waiver of the matching requirements in the absence of loca l resources 
or apply for a loan to meet the matching requirement at appropriate interest rates. 

Applications are scored by rating certain criteria such as description and need; benefit to low 
and moderate income persons; leveraging; citizen participation; planning; feasibility and 
readiness; user fees and revenues; and cost benefit. The Community Development Council 
{CDC) also will take into consideration current economic situations, if the entity was funded last 
year and application presentation. 



SUSANA MARTINEZ 
GOVERNOR 

THOMAS E. CLIFFORD, PH.D. 

RICK LOPEZ 
DIRECTOR 

February 3, 2016 

The Honorable Dale Janway 
Mayor, City of Carlsbad 
P.O. Box 1569 
carlsbad, NM 88221·1569 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION 
6at~un Mernorl I Building • Suite 202 • Santa Fe, NM 87601 

PHONE (505) 827·8051 • FAX (5051 827-4340 

Attn.: Georgia Goad, DepJty Planmng Di•ector 

Re Approval of Ltmtted Client.:le (LMr) for CDBG 2016 Application 

Dear Mayor Janway, 

CABINET SECRETARY 

This 1s in response to communtcations from Georgia Goad, Deputy Plannmg Director for the City of Carlsbad. On 
behalf of the City of Carlsbad, Ms Goad reque<>ted approval from the Department of Finance and Administration 
(DFA), local Government Di on ILGD) to USF the Limited Clientele (LMC) eligibility category for a proposed 
Community Development B 'C.r l'lt (C0i3G, , roject. 

Per information received the pro'}osed proiect is for a Homeless Shelter for the dtsplaced and homeless of the 
community. The City believes the project "ualif ies for Ltmtted Clientele eligibility because it will benefit 
homeless persons, an eligible LMC popula<ton lie City n~queste.d that th!"y he allowed to use tfie 
d\!CIIrTI<.TI • • n r·c.gardirrt2 th. I'll? foT .~ .ol s shelter se lC lsl:5ao n was submitt'ecno DFA lGD 
aunng the 2-015 application cl 

t 

If you have any questions, pi ase · untact , e at 505-827 4963. 

Sincerely, 

'A~v'M-'1-
Karen Ramage 
Project Manager 

cc Jolene Slowen, DFA/ ·o ~ ~mmun y Development Bureau Chtef 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-

WHEREAS, the attached lists of materials, equipment, and supplies are 

considered surplus and nonessential for municipal purposes; and 

WHEREAS, it is to the City's advantage to dispose of those things listed; and 

WHEREAS, the State regulations allow for such disposal of public property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF 

THE CITY OF CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO that the items listed on the attached pages 

and incorporated herein are declared unusable and obsolete and that said items be 

disposed of by public sale or as otherwise provided by law. 

APPROVED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED this __ day of ___ ____;> 2016. 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

i . I 
' I 
I I 

.::-: : 
' ., 

I 
~~ I I I 

l I 



FIRST VERIFICATION (Prior to Actual Disposal) 

Each of the below-signed offic ials of the City of Carlsbad, New Mexico do hereby verify that, upon information and belief, 
the attached document is a list of tangible personal propetty belonging to the City of Carlsbad, such property has a value of 
five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) or less, such property is worn-out, unusable, or obsolete to the extent that it is no longer 
economical or safe for continued use by the City of Carlsbad, and each official approves of the disposition of such property 
as provided by law. 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 
) ss. 

mero, Director of Uti lities 

~odD.be~~~- Mendoza 
,)_·~ (\(\ Z.{ Asst. Fire 

~.~lN~ 3ft~ 
Kent Waller, Police Chief 

Chief 

COUNTY OF EDDY ) 

Sigoed .od swoon to me this .J'f4.y ~UNJ~by Tom Carlson, Director of Public Works. 

My commission expires:() / (), 1 j,~ t OFFICIAL SEAl. 
~ Notary Public MELINDAA.ROUNTREf 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO 

COUNTY OF EDDY 

) 
) ss. 
) 

NOTARY PUJIUC.STAlli "?ff:... ';tfJ 
My commission axpii'IIS':Jf4. 9 

Signed and sworn to me this ~d~~ ,.;)91~ , by Luis R. Came.ro, Director ofUti~ities: . ~ 

My commission expires:OS-.;t..3-l'i ~ _ . f3oc.X_ ···· · ·;_ .:.~~ ~ · rr .,It'.~ S._,. ... _ ~· 
Notary Public ~ t ~ r .::~ ~ KAReN E. BOG~~ \ 

,'! ·1 ;t 'J ~- ~ tiOTARV PUBUC t 
~~ ··, -~ :~ ,. srArt::OFNEWMEX\CO ~ 

•:,t,,l•••' 'u. ~~'1.....~..- I 
, t ~-.,• Cy('1' <",.."""":":-~·~,~~-.;;r.;?~ 

) 
) ss. 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO 

COUNTY OF EDDY ) 

S igned a.~d sworn to me this 3, ~ay of h~eb<" a.r~~, by R~a}:Q..Q~, trr~ thief. 
~ L Br~an K . Mendoza 

My comm ission expires: q \'ttB {t8 -'N""""'""~""'--"=_,.,~~G..._..~....,,....,~"""-'=---
Notary Public 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF EDDY ) 

Signed and sworn to me this ~,J.. day of ~ , «oil, , by Kent Waller, Chief of Police. 

My commission exph·esoG.ca </ 1 :IDI'l ~ t:r.J~ 
ry Pubh 



UNUSABLE OR OBSOLETE CITY PROPERTY 

Department: _ _,S:...:T=R=E=E=T-"D=E=P""--'T"-----_ _____ .Date: - - --=2=---2=---=1-=6 _ _____ _ 

Department Head: TOM CARLSON 

The City property described below is unusable or obsolete and has been. It is 
recommended that the governing body declare such property unusable or obsolete 
and authorize disposition by public sale or as otherwise provided by law. 

Item# Description Inventory# 

UNIDEN MOBILE PHONE 1720 

MOBILE RADIO 1727 

Page 1 of 2 



UNUSABLE OR OBSOLETE CITY PROPERTY 

Department: -------"F~ir"'"""'e=------_________ Date: 1-21-16 

Department Head: Richard D. Lopez 

The City property described below is unusable or obsolete and has been. It is 
recommended that the governing body declare such property unusable or obsolete 
and authorize disposition by public sale or as otherwise provided by law. 

Item# Description ! Inventory# ! 

1 1998 Panther Air Boat I 9880 

2 1990 Achilles Rubber Raft w / Launching Wheels I 492 
I 

I 

I 

I 
I . 
I 
I 

I 
I 

Page 1 of 2 



UNUSABLE OR OBSOLETE CITY PROPERTY 

Department: --~P~E~R~D~ _________________ Date: ----~2~-~2-~1~6 ____________ _ 

DepartmentHead: ____ T~E=F~F~P~A~T~T~E=R=SO~N ______________________________ __ 

The City property described below is unusable or obsolete and has been. It is 
recommended that the governing body declare such property unusable or obsolete 
and authorize disposition by public sale or as otherwise provided by law. 

Item# Description Inventory# 

HP DESIGNJET PLOTTER 900000417 

FLAT FILE CABINET 4657 

FLAT FILE CABINET 4658 

FLAT FILE CABINET 4659 

FLAT FILE CABINET 4660 

HP DESIGNJET T1120PS PLOTTER NO # 

UNI DEN MOBILE PHONE 8U 

Page 1 of 2 



UNUSABLE OR OBSOLETE CITY PROPERTY 

Department: _ ____,_W.!....:.A~T"--!:E=R......,D"'""'E=P.......,T~ _____ Date: - ---"'2'-'-2=--=-16~------

DepMtmentHead: --~I~AM==E=Y~SC=HVn~~G==ER=----------------

The City property described below is unusable or obsolete and has been. It is 
recommended that the governing body declare such property unusable or obsolete 
and authorize disposition by public sale or as otherwise provided by law. 

Item# Description Inventory# 

UNIDEN MOBILE PHONE 2995 

UNIDEN MOBILE PHONE 3186 

Page 1 of 2 



UNUSABLE OR OBSOLETE CITY PROPERTY 

Department --~A=I=R~PO==R=T ___________ Date: ----~2~-2~-~1~6 ____________ _ 

DepMtmentHead: --~S~H~E~R~RI~C~HA~N~D~LE~R~-----------------------------

The City property described below is unusable or obsolete and has been. It is 
recommended that the governing body declare such property unusable or obsolete 
and authorize disposition by public sale or as otherwise provided by law. 

Item# Description Inventory# 

T AIT MOBILE RADIO 1753 

MIDLAND MOBILE RADIO 1598 

MIDLAND MOBILE PHONE 2003 

Page 1 of 2 



UNUSABLE OR OBSOLETE CITY PROPERTY 

Department --~T~RAN~~S=IT~ _______________ Date: ----~2~-1~-~1~6 ____________ _ 

Department Head: PATSY JACKSON-CHRISTOPHER 

The City property described below is unusable or obsolete and has been. It is 
recommended that the governing body declare such property unusable or obsolete 
and authorize disposition by public sale or as otherwise provided by law. 

Item# Description Inventory# 

HP LASERJET 3150XL PRINTER 5714 

Page 1 of 2 



UNUSABLE OR OBSOLETE CITY PROPERTY 

Department: ----=<S=O-=LI~D:o.__W~A=ST~E=-_ ____ Date: ----=2'---'-2=--=-16:><.._ _____ _ 

Department Head: RUBEN RAMIREZ 

The City property described below is unusable or obsolete and has been. It is 
recommended that the governing body declare such property unusable or obsolete 
and authorize disposition by public sale or as otherwise provided by law. 

Item# Description Inventory# 

UNIDEN MOBILE PHONE 2007 

MIDLAND RADIO 645 

Page 1 of 2 



UNUSABLE OR OBSOLETE CITY PROPERTY 

Department --~F~IRE~=D=E~PT~ ______________ Date: ----~2~-2~-~1=6 ____________ _ 

DepartmentHead: --~R~I~C=K~L~O~P~EZ=-------------------------------------

The City property described below is unusable or obsolete and has been. It is 
recommended that the governing body declare such property unusable or obsolete 
and authorize disposition by public sale or as otherwise provided by law. 

Item# Description Inventory# 

UNIDEN MOBILE RADIO 724 

Page 1 of 2 



UNUSABLE OR OBSOLETE CITY PROPERTY 

Dep~tment: --~P~O~L=IC~E==D=E~PT~ ____________ Date: ----~2~-2~-~1~6 ____________ _ 

DepartmentHead: ____ KE==N~T~VV~A~LL=E=R~----------------------------------

The City property described below is unusable or obsolete and has been. It is 
recommended that the governing body decl~e such property unusable or obsolete 
and authorize disposition by public sale or as otherwise provided by law. 

Item# Description Inventory# 

UNIDEN MOBILE PHONE 1240 

UNIDEN MOBILE PHONE 868 

Page 1 of 2 



Exhibit A 

ORDINANCE NO. 

--------'NEW MEXICO 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE SALE OF REAL PROPERTY BY EDDY-LEA 
ENERGY ALLIANCE, LLC, A NEW MEXICO LIM1TED LIABILITY COMPANY 
FORMED PURSUANT TO THE NEW MEXICO JOINT POWERS ACT BY EDDY 
COUNTY, LEA COUNTY, THE CITY OF CARLSBAD AND THE CITY OF HOBBS 
("ELEA"); AUTHORIZING ELEA TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A LAND PURCHASE 
OPTION AGREEMENT WITH HOLTEC INTERNATIONAL, A DELAWARE 
CORPORATION; AND AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING ELEA TO SUBMIT THE 
AGREEMENT TO THE STATE BOARD OF FINANCE FOR APPROVAL PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 13-6-2.1 NMSA 1978. 

WHEREAS, Eddy-Lea Energy Alliance, LLC, a New Mexico limited liability company 
("ELEA"), was formed in 2006 pursuant to the New Mexico Joint Powers Act by Eddy County, 
Lea County, the City of Carlsbad and the City of Hobbs, which counties and ·municipalities 
constitute the four members of ELEA (the "Members"); 

WHEREAS, ELEA was originally formed for the purpose of acquiring and developing a 
site in Lea County to be used to host a facility under the Global Nuclear Energy Partnership, a 
program to be administered by the U.S. Department of Energy ("GNEP"); 

WHEREAS, ELEA purchased approximately 960 acres of unimproved land in Section 
13, T20S, R32E, and Sections 17 and 18, T20S, R33E (as more specifically described in the 
Agreement, defined below); 

WHEREAS, after the GNEP program was abandoned by the federal government, ELEA 
turned its attention to developing the Land as the site for an interim storage facility (a "Facility") 
for spent nuclear fuel ("SNF") and/or high-level nuclear waste ("HL W"), and the ELEA board of 
directors has had extensive discussions with organizations in the nuclear power and defense 
industries concerning the feasibility of such a Facility; 

WHEREAS, it was previously anticipated that the disposition of the Land and the 
development of a Facility would be authorized and developed under the authority of the Local 
Economic Development Act, Sections 5-10-1 through 5-10-1 3 NMSA 1978 ("LEDA"); 

WHEREAS, the ELEA board has determined that it would be preferable to sell the Land 
under the authority of Section 13-6-2 NMSA 1978, as opposed to LEDA; 

WHEREAS, ELEA has issued a request for proposals for offers to purchase the Land 
from ELEA and to develop the Land as a site for a Facility; 

3 



WHEREAS, Holtec International ("Holtec"), a Delaware corporation with extensive 
experience in the storage of SNF and HL W, has submitted a response to the RFP (the 
"Proposal") under which (i) Holtec would purchase the Land for a price that was equal to or 
greater than its fair market value, (ii) Holtec would obtain a license for, construct and operate a 
Facility, and (iii) Holtec would share the Facility revenues with ELEA; 

WHEREAS, the ELEA board of directors has reviewed and approved the Holtec 
proposal, and has recommended that each of the Members approve the proposed agreement 
between ELEA and Holtec attached hereto as Exhibit 1 (the "Agreement"). 

THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE OF 

Section 1. The (the "Governing Body") fmds that (i) the 
Agreement will comply with applicable law, including but not limited to Section 13-6-2 NMSA 
1968 and the restrictions of the Anti-donation Clause, N.M. Const. Ch. IX, Art. 14, (ii) that the 
Agreement and the Facility are consistent with the economic development purpose for which 
ELEA was formed, and (iii) that the Agreement and the Facility will be highly beneficial to 
economies ofthe Members and the well-being of the Members' citizens. 

Section 2. The Agreement is hereby approved. The Chair of ELEA, or another 
director ofELEA designated by him (collectively, the "ELEA Officer") is authorized to execute 
the Agreement, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 1, subject to such changes 
and amendments, not inconsistent with this Ordinance, as are necessary or desirable for the 
successful sale of the Land and the development and operation of a Facility. The ELEA Officer 
is further authorized to submit the Agreement to the SBOF for approval under Section 13-6-2.1 
NMSA 1978 and NMAC 1.5.23.9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Ordinance 
the Agreement shall not be effective until it has received SBOF approval. 

Section 3. The specifically approves the disposition of the Land 
pursuant to Section 13-6-2 NMSA 1978 in lieu ofthe provisions ofLEDA. 

Section 4. The officers of the are hereby authorized and 
directed to take all action necessary or appropriate to effectuate the provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 5. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall for 
any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such 
section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this 
Ordinance. 

Section 6. All ordinances or resolutions, or parts thereof, inconsistent herewith, 
including but not limited to any ordinance adopted under the authority of LEDA, are hereby 
repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency. This repealer shall not be construed to revive 
any ordinance, or resolution, or part thereof, heretofore repealed. 

4 



Passed~ Approved, Signed and Adopted this_ day of _____ , 2016. 

[GOVERNING BODY OF __j 

ATTEST: 

Clerk -----

5 



No document for this
Agenda Item



No document for this
Agenda Item


	1.Feb 23, 2016 Council Agenda
	2.Budget Review 12-31-15
	3.Res 2016-11, 3rd Qtr 2015-16 Budget Adjustments
	01 - General Fund
	23 - Lodgers' Tax
	56 - 2002 Sales Tax Bond Fund

	4.A.Feb 4,16 Draft Special Council
	4.B. Feb 9, 16 Council Minutes
	4.C.Personnel Report
	4.D.1.Award, RFP 2015-47, Medical Director
	4.D.2.Reject RFP 2015-48, Healtcare Study
	4.D.3.Award CES, CYSC BB
	4.E.Reimbursement,  Kay Atwood
	4.F.1.Monthly, Municipal Court
	4.F.2.Monthly, PERD Activity Rpt
	4.F.3.Monthly Sports & Rec
	4.G.Board Appointments
	5.Res 2016-12, CDBG
	6.Res No 2016-13, Obsolete Property
	7.Ord No 2016-10,  ELEA
	8.Council Committee Reports
	9.Adjourn



